
 
 
 

   562.663.6850 phone  562.634.8216 fax     www.gatewayirwmp.org 

Christopher Cash, Board Chair  Adriana Figueroa, Vice-Chair  Charlie Honeycutt, Secretary/Treasurer    Kevin Wattier, Chair Emeritus 

Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 
 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
Huntington Park · La Mirada · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Maywood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera ·  

Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill · South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier  
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County  

16401 Paramount Blvd., Paramount, CA 90723 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 
  

 

 
AGENDA 

 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
Thursday, October 8, 2015 at 11:30 a.m. 

Progress Park Plaza, 15500 Downey Avenue, Paramount, CA 
 
 

 
1. Roll Call 

 
2. Determination of a Quorum 

 
3. Additions to Agenda (Govt. Code Sec. 54954.2(b)) 

 
4. Oral Communications to the Board 

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on any item under the jurisdiction of the agency.  Depending upon the subject matter, t
he Board may be unable to respond until the item can be posted on the agenda at a future meeting in accordance with provisions of the Brown Act. 
 

5. Consent Calendar: (Acted as one item unless withdrawn by request) 
a. Minutes of the Board Meeting of September 10, 2015 (Enclosure) 
b. Warrant Register Report and List of Warrants for October 2015 (Enclosure) 

 
6. Status of Accounting Transition 

 
7. Discussion/Action Regarding Letter Supporting the Fair Allocation of Prop 1 Water Bond 

Funds to the Rivers & Mountains Conservancy (Enclosures) 
 

a. Authorize Chair to Sign and Submit the Letters Supporting the Fair Allocation of Prop. 1 
Water Bond Funds to the Rivers & Mountains Conservancy 

 
8. Discussion/Action Regarding State Water Resources Control Board Storm Water Plan 

Guidelines and Prop 1 Storm Water Grant Guidelines (Enclosures) 
 

a. Authorize Chair to Sign and Submit Public Comment Letter to the SWRCB 
 

9. Discussion/Action Regarding GWMA Bylaws (Enclosure) 
 

a. Approve GWMA Bylaws 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 

   562.663.6850 phone  562.634.8216 fax     www.gatewayirwmp.org 

Christopher Cash, Board Chair  Adriana Figueroa, Vice-Chair  Charlie Honeycutt, Secretary/Treasurer    Kevin Wattier, Chair Emeritus 

Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 
 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · 
Huntington Park · La Mirada · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Maywood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera ·  

Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill · South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier  
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County  

16401 Paramount Blvd., Paramount, CA 90723 

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 
  

 
 
 
 

10. Gateway Region Watershed Management Plan (WMPs) and MOU and/or Amendment 
Activities 

a. Lower Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Watershed Group 
 

b. Lower Los Angeles River Watershed Group 
 
c. Los Cerritos Channel Watershed Group 
 
d. Lower San Gabriel River Watershed Group 

 
11. Executive Officer’s Report 

 
12. Directors’ Comments/Reports 

 
13. Adjournment 

 



AGENDA ITEM NO. 5A 
 

MINUTES OF THE GATEWAY WATER MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
LOS ANGELES GATEWAY REGION 

INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY BOARD  
AT PARAMOUNT, CALIFORNIA 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2015 
 

 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Gateway Water Management Authority was held on 

Thursday, September 10, 2015 at 11:30 a.m. at the Progress Park Plaza, 15500 Downey Avenue, Paramount, 
CA 90723. 

 
Secretary/Treasurer Charlie Honeycutt called the meeting to order at 11:40 a.m.  Roll was called by Ms. 

Kast and a quorum of the Board was declared.  
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 

 

STAFF AND GUESTS ON SIGN-IN SHEET:  

Grace Kast 
Jason Wen 
Jim Glancy 
Johnathan Perisho 
Enrique Huerta 
Cindy Byerrum 
Kyle Cason 
Debbie Enos 
Yvette Kirrin 
Daniel Apt 
Mark Stanley 
 

Executive Officer 
Lakewood 
Lakewood 
Watershed Conservation Authority 
Outreach Consultant 
Platinum Consulting 
Whittier 
Watershed Conservation Authority 
GCCOG 
GCCOG 
Watershed Conservation Authority 

 
ITEM 3 - ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Okina Dor 
Jordan Monroe 
Bernardo Inguez (alternate) 

Tammy Hierlihy 
Mike O’Grady (alternate) 

Christina Dixon (alternate) 

Mark Stowell 
Lisa Rapp 

Derek Wieske (alternate) 

Eric Leung (alternate) 

William Stracker 
Danilo Batson 
Gladis Deras (alternate) 

Sarina Morales (proxy) 

Charlie Honeycutt 

William De Witt 
Scott Rigg (alternate) 

Hye Jin Lee 
Esther Rojas (Alternate) 

Artesia 
Avalon 
Bellflower 
Central Basin MWD 
Cerritos 
Huntington Park 
La Mirada 
Lakewood 
Long Beach 
Long Beach MWD 
Lynwood 
Montebello 
Pico Rivera 
Santa Fe Springs 
Signal Hill 
South Gate 
Vernon 
Whittier 
Water Replenishment District 

  



Gateway Water Management Authority Special Board Meeting 
Minutes September 10, 2015 

 
 
 None.  
  
ITEM 4 – ORAL COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 
 
 None.  
  
ITEM 5 – CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 Director Rapp moved to approve the consent calendar.  The motion was seconded by Director Rigg and 
was approved by the following voice vote: 
 
 AYES: MONROE, HIERLIHY, STOWELL, RAPP, STRACKER, BATSON, 

HONEYCUTT, LEE, INIGUEZ, O’GRADY, DIXON, WIESKE, LEUNG, DERAS, 
RIGG, ROJAS, MORALES  

 
 NOES: NONE 
 
 ABSTAIN: DOR 
 
ITEM 6 – PRESENTATION: GCCOG STRATEGIC TRANSPORTATION PLAN (GCCOG STP) 
CHAPTER 13 STORMWATER 
 
 Ms. Yvette Kirrin and Mr. Daniel Apt, Gateway Cities Council of Governments, gave a presentation on 
the GCCOG Strategic Transportation Plan Chapter 13 Stormwater.  They indicated that the purpose of the plan 
was to ensure that stormwater treatment measures were included in the sub-regional transportation 
infrastructure improvements as part of the GCCOG STP and to provide an approach to stormwater pollution 
prevention and runoff water quality treatment.  They also indicated that the goal was to assist in effectively 
implementing the Green Street Policies and complying with the MS4 permits and TMDLS. 
 
 They then proceeded to provide the Board with the background information, outlined permits and other 
requirements, discussed the stormwater quality strategy for transportation projects, reviewed intersection 
analysis and cost evaluations, funding framework and implementation recommendations.   
 
ITEM 7 – PRESENTATION:  GATEWAY CITIES AND RIVERS URBAN GREENING MASTER 
PLAN 
  
  Mr. Mark Stanley, Watershed Conservation Authority, gave a presentation on the Gateway Cities and 
Rivers Urban Greening Master Plan.  He stated that The Watershed Conservation Authority, in partnership with 
North East Trees, and as part of its vision of “Connecting Communities Through Nature”, was launching the 
development of a Visionary Urban Greening Master Plan for the Gateway Cities and Lower LA and San 
Gabriel Rivers.   
 

Director De Witt entered at 12:15 p.m. 
 

Page 2 
 



Gateway Water Management Authority Special Board Meeting 
Minutes September 10, 2015 

 
 

He stated that The Urban Greening Plan seeks to expand access to and development of greenways, 
parks, and access points along our river corridors, and also extend greening projects throughout our urban 
communities through identification of complete street opportunities that provide multi-benefits to Cities, 
Neighborhoods, and individuals.  He indicated that the plan would: incorporating existing plans and public 
input, identify new and improved park, trail, bikeway, water conservation and capture, complete streets, tree 
cover, and interpretive and way-finding opportunities within the 26 cities and unincorporated areas that make up 
the Gateway Cities region.  

 
Mr. Stanley then proceeded to outline the goals of the Urban Greening Master Plan and to engage and 

encourage continued participation in the plan over time via an online comment sharing platform.  In closing, 
Mr. Stanley indicated that the living document would ideally be hosted on an open source database website to 
ensure public access and transparency on progress in implementing the plan.    
 
ITEM 8 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING GWMA ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 
PROCEDURES 
 

Ms. Kast reported that during the past year, an Ad Hoc Committee of the Board met to review internal 
staffing needs, accounting functions and what was needed to address GWMA’s growing functions and 
responsibilities.  She stated that in July of this year, the Board of Directors approved a consulting contract with 
Platinum Client Services to develop banking and accounting procedures and to conduct the reconciliation and 
transition of funds to GWMA, including the opening of a GWMA bank account. 

 
 Ms. Kast reported that the attached policies and procedures were reviewed by the Lead Agency, the 
Executive Officer and the Executive Committee.  In closing, Ms. Kast stated that it was recommended that this 
general policy be approved by the Board so that the banking transition process could begin before more time 
had passed in the current fiscal year.  She indicated that while that was occurring, the Lead Agency would assist 
GWMA to improve the policy manual by breaking it into more detailed individual policies that define 
procedures and positions of responsibility to help strengthen oversight.   
 
 Director De Witt moved to approve GWMA’s Accounting Policies and Procedures as presented and 
authorized the Chair and staff to submit a formal request to the City of Signal Hill to release funds associated 
with all GWMA activities.  The motion was seconded by Director Weiske and was approved by the following 
voice vote: 
 
 AYES: MONROE, HIERLIHY, STOWELL, RAPP, STRACKER, BATSON, 

HONEYCUTT, LEE, INIGUEZ, O’GRADY, DIXON, WIESKE, LEUNG, DERAS, 
RIGG, ROJAS, MORALES, DOR, DE WITT  

 
 NOES: NONE 
 
 ABSTAIN: NONE 
  
ITEM 9 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING GWMA GRANT POLICY 
 

Page 3 
 



Gateway Water Management Authority Special Board Meeting 
Minutes September 10, 2015 

 
 
  Ms. Kast reported that in response to the passage of Proposition 1 last November, an Ad Hoc 
Committee was formed to review opportunities for grants from Proposition 1.  She indicated that the committee 
members were: Adriana Figueroa, Gladis Deras, Art Cervantes, Anthony Arevalo and Grace Kast.  She stated 
that, at its first meeting earlier this year, the committee reviewed the many opportunities available through 
Proposition 1 and other grant programs and decided to first develop a grant policy for board consideration.  She 
reported that the committee felt it was important to have a clear understanding of the types of grants which 
should be pursued and how the costs to apply would be paid and/or shared.  She stated that this policy was a 
result of several committee conference calls and that the approach used by the committee was to focus on cost 
benefit while still allowing for case-by-case situations.  
 
 Ms. Kast reported that at last month’s board meeting, board members provided comments and 
suggestions that had been incorporated into the attached document.  It was also circulated to the Ad Hoc 
Committee members prior to this Board Meeting.  In closing, Ms. Kast recommended that the Board approve 
the Grant Policy as presented. 
 
 Director Deras moved to add Director Monroe and Director Hierlihy and approve GWMA’s Grant 
Policy as presented.  The motion was seconded by Director Batson and was approved by the following voice 
vote: 
 
 AYES: MONROE, HIERLIHY, STOWELL, RAPP, STRACKER, BATSON, 

HONEYCUTT, LEE, INIGUEZ, O’GRADY, DIXON, WIESKE, LEUNG, DERAS, 
RIGG, ROJAS, MORALES, DOR, DE WITT  

 
 NOES: NONE 
 
 ABSTAIN: NONE 
 
ITEM 10 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING GWMA BYLAWS REGARDING GOVERNING 
BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 

This item was deferred until the October Board Meeting.  
 
ITEM 11 – GATEWAY REGION WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN (WMPs) AND MOU 
AND/OR AMENDMENTS ACTIVITIES 
 
Lower Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Watershed Group 
 
 This item was deferred until the October Board Meeting.  
 
Lower Los Angeles River Watershed Group 
 

This item was deferred until the October Board Meeting.  
  
Los Cerritos Channel Watershed Group 

Page 4 
 



Gateway Water Management Authority Special Board Meeting 
Minutes September 10, 2015 

 
 
 
 This item was deferred until the October Board Meeting.  
 
  
Lower San Gabriel River Watershed Group 
 
 This item was deferred until the October Board Meeting.  
  
 
ITEM 12 – EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
  Ms. Kast acknowledged Mr. Jim Glancy, who announced his retirement from the city of Lakewood.  
 
ITEM 13 – DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS/REPORT 
 
  Director Rapp reported their project with Cal Trans is moving ahead. It was announced Jason Wynn 
will be the new board alternate for the city of Lakewood. 
   
  The meeting was adjourned at 1:10 p.m. 
 
  
___________________________________     ______________________ 
Charlie Honeycutt, Secretary/Treasurer      Date 

Page 5 
 



AGENDA ITEM NO. 5B 
 
 
 

16401 Paramount Blvd., Paramount, CA 90723 •   562.663.6850 phone 562-634-8216 fax  

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management  

Joint Powers Authority 
•  www.gatewayirwmp.org 

Christopher Cash, Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa, Vice-Chair • Charlie Honeycutt, Secretary/Treasurer •   Kevin Wattier, Chair Emeritus 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · Huntington Park ·  
La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·  

South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 
 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County  

 

 

 

October 8, 2015 

 

 

SECTION NO. 5(b) Warrant Register Dated October 8, 2015 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
The Warrant Register is a listing of general checks issued since the prior warrant register 
and warrants to be released by the City of Signal Hill, serving as Treasurer of the 
Gateway Water Management Authority, upon Board approval. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Warrant Register for expenditures dated October 8, 2015 in the amount of 
$270,516.02 is submitted for approval.  Invoices and supporting documentation are 
available for review at the City of Signal Hill Department of Finance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
The Warrant Register totals $270,516.02.  Funds to cover payment are available in the 
Gateway Authority budget. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the Warrant Register as presented. 

 

 



Invoice Invoice
Date Vendor Number Description Amount

06/22/15 Anchor QEA 42513 Harbor Toxics TMDL Monitoring $ 14,837.78

07/01/15 Southern California Water Committee 26651 Annual Membership Dues $ 700.00

08/31/15 Richard Watson Gershon 203193 Legal Services - General $ 2,966.16

08/31/15 Richard Watson Gershon 203194 Legal Services - MS4 Permit MOU $ 382.50

08/31/15 Toni Penn 15-8-31 Admin/Accounting Services $ 2,025.00

08/31/15 Platinum Consulting Group 3497 Auditing Services $ 2,145.00

09/01/15 California Watershed Engineering 15699 Upper LAR Reach 2 WMP & CIMP Development $ 28,200.00

09/01/15 City of Paramount 3276 Rent $ 322.50

09/01/15 City of Paramount 3283 Meeting Expenses $ 288.21

09/01/15 John L. Hunter & Assoc. GANPLA0715 LLAR WMP Development $ 50,931.50

09/01/15 John L. Hunter & Assoc. GANPSG0715 LSGR WMP Development $ 25,723.75

09/02/15 GEI Consultants 716103 Watersmart Grant Administration $ 526.50

09/04/15 Anchor QEA 43547 Harbor Toxics TMDL Monitoring $ 47,795.29

09/04/15 Anchor QEA 43546 Harbor Toxics TMDL Monitoring $ 4,440.36

09/04/15 GEI Consultants 716118 GWMA 2015 Imple. Grant Soliciation $ 1,537.50

09/11/15 California Watershed Engineering 15706 Upper LAR Reach 2 WMP & CIMP Development $ 75,618.17

09/23/15 Joe A. Gonsalves & Son 25595 Legislative Advocacy Services $ 2,083.33

09/28/15 Alliant 10314 Speical Liability Insurance for 9/29/15-9/29/16 $ 9,992.47

$ 270,516.02

WARRANT REGISTER
Disbursement Journal

8-Oct-15

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5B



16401 Paramount Blvd., Paramount, CA 90723 • 562.663.6850 phone 562-634-8216 fax

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 
• www.gatewayirwmp.org

Christopher Cash, Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa, Vice-Chair • Charlie Honeycutt, Secretary/Treasurer •   Kevin Wattier, Chair Emeritus 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · Huntington Park · 
La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·  

South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 

October 8, 2015 

SECTION 7 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING LETTER SUPPORTING THE FAIR 
ALLOCATION OF PROP 1 WATER BOND FUNDS TO THE RIVERS & MOUNTAINS 
CONSERVANCY  

SUMMARY 

At GWMA’s August Board meeting, Mr. Mark Stanley, Watershed Conservation Authority, 
gave a presentation on the Gateway Cities and Rivers Urban Greening Master Plan.  The 
goal of this plan is to connect communities through nature to enhance the quality of life for 
communities in need up and down the Lower LA River.  

The Rivers and Mountains Conservancy (RMC) is seeking the support of GWMA for a fair 
share (i.e., at least 50%) of $100 million in additional Prop 1 funding to be allocated to the 
Los Angeles River by the State Water Board.     

RECOMMENDATION 

Authorize the Chair to sign and submit the letters supporting the fair allocation of Prop. 1 
Water Bond Funds to the Rivers & Mountains Conservancy as presented. 

     AGENDA ITEM NO. 7



AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

16401 Paramount Blvd., Paramount, CA 90723 • 562.663.6850 phone 562-634-8216 fax

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 
• www.gatewayirwmp.org

Christopher Cash, Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa, Vice-Chair • Charlie Honeycutt, Secretary/Treasurer •   Kevin Wattier, Chair Emeritus 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · Huntington Park · 
La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·  

South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 

October 8, 2015 

The Honorable Tony Mendoza, Senator 
The Honorable Ricardo Lara, Senator 
The Honorable Kevin de Leon, Senator 
The Honorable Anthony Rendon, Assembly Member 

Subject: Fair Allocation of Prop. 1 Water Bond Funds to the Rivers & Mountains 
Conservancy 

Dear __________: 

I am writing on behalf of the Gateway Water Management Authority representing cities 
and water agencies in the Southeast Los Angeles County to express our strong support 
for a fair allocation of Water Bond funding to the San Gabriel and Lower Los Angeles 
Rivers and Mountains Conservancy (RMC).  As you know, the geographic focus of the 
RMC is on the Lower Los Angeles River, which is a key asset to the Gateway region, but 
for decades has lagged behind the Upper River in terms of investment. 

The Water Bond allocated $100 million to the River in total, to be divided between the 
upper and lower sections.  It is our understanding that the share requested by the Santa 
Monica Mountains Conservancy (SMMC) is more than half of this amount.  We do not 
believe that this would represent a fair distribution of the funds, for several reasons. 

First, as you know, the Gateway region is home to the greatest concentration of 
disadvantaged communities in the state.  Like the river itself, these communities have 
long suffered from underinvestment.  Providing more than half of the funds to the Upper 
LA River would only compound this past neglect. 

We understand that the SMMC intends to use its share of the Prop. 1 Water Bond funding 
to acquire land along the Upper LA River for future use.  However, this land could sit 
unused until further funding is found, thus providing no immediate benefit to anyone or to 
the environment.  The Gateway region stakeholders, meanwhile, have been participating 
with the Gateway Cities Council of Government in several significant planning efforts that 
identify numerous projects that can be implemented far sooner and that will enhance the 
quality of life for communities in need up and down the Lower LA River.  



Examples include: 

• The Gateway Cities’ subregional Sustainable Communities Strategy, prepared
under SB 375.

• The Gateway Cities’ Strategic Transportation Plan (STP).  The STP includes,
among other elements, a comprehensive Active Transportation element, as well as
arterial corridor “complete streets” collaborations.  These arterial corridors stretch
across the region and many intersect with the LA River, offering opportunities for
innovation and enhanced community connections.

Additionally, we must note that the Water Bond included a direct allocation of $30 million 
to each of the two Conservancies – marking the first time that the RMC has received the 
same share as the SMMC.  It is critical now not to reverse this important policy precedent. 
To do so would be extremely disappointing, especially given the need in the Lower LA 
River communities. 

We further understand that a park-related bond might be placed on the November 2016 
ballot, including $100 million for the Los Angeles River.  While we always support the 
direction of funds to our region, we would not want to see the $100 million in the current, 
voter-approved water bond be deferred in favor of a future bond.  The voters have spoken 
and the money should be allocated now. 

We hope you will agree that a minimum of 50% of the $100 million Water Bond funding 
for the Los Angeles River should be allocated to the RMC.  The cities and communities 
along the Lower LA River are ready to put these funds to constructive use in improving 
the lives of their residents. 

Thank you for considering our position.  We are happy to speak with you or your staff 
regarding this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Christopher S. Cash 
Chair 

cc: Mr. Mark Stanley 



16401 Paramount Blvd., Paramount, CA 90723  562.663.6850 phone 562-634-8216 fax

Los Angeles Gateway Region 

Integrated Regional Water Management 
Joint Powers Authority 

 www.gatewayirwmp.org

Christopher Cash, Board Chair  Adriana Figueroa, Vice-Chair  Charlie Honeycutt, Secretary/Treasurer    Kevin Wattier, Chair Emeritus

Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · Huntington Park · 
La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·  

South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 

October 8, 2015 

Section 8 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL 

BOARD STORM WATER PLAN GUIDELINES AND PROP 1 STORM WATER GRANT 

GUIDELINES 

SUMMARY 

On September 30th, the S W R C B held a public meeting to present their draft guidelines for the 

Storm Water Resource Plan requirements and the Prop 1 Storm Water Grant Program.  The 

meeting was held at the Orange County Water District and was attended by many Southern 

California stakeholders including several from GWMA.  The SWRCB is seeking comments and 

suggestions for the guidelines by noon on October 13, 2015 

As a result of the presentation, questions and answers and general discussion, staff has prepared 

an official public comment letter to submit to the SWRCB which is enclosed.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Authorize Chair to sign and submit the public comment letter to the SWRCB. 

    AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 



16401 Paramount Blvd., Paramount, CA 90723 • 562.663.6850 phone 562-634-8216 fax

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 
• www.gatewayirwmp.org

Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 
Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · Huntington Park · 

La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·  
South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 

Christopher Cash, Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa, Vice-Chair • Charlie Honeycutt, Secretary/Treasurer •   Kevin Wattier, Chair Emeritus 

DRAFT 
October XX, 2015 

Jeanine Townsend, Clerk to the Board (via email) 
State Water Resources Control Board 
1001 I Street, 24th Floor 
Sacramento, CA  95814 

Subject: Comment Letter – Storm Water Resource Plan and Proposition 1 Funding 
Guidelines 

Dear Ms. Townsend and Members of the Board: 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Draft Storm Water Resource Plan 
(“Stormwater Plan”) Guidelines and Draft Proposition 1 Storm Water Grant Program 
Funding Guidelines.  The Gateway Water Management Authority (“GWMA”) is a Joint 
Powers Authority comprised of 25 cities and three large water agencies in Southeastern 
Los Angeles County.   

The GWMA is responsible for coordinating and assisting with regional watershed 
programs, including the work of the four watershed groups in our region that recently 
completed their Watershed Management Programs (“WMPs”). After the Los Angeles 
Regional Water Quality Control Board (“LARWQB”) approved the WMPs earlier this year, 
the four groups are now working together on the implementation of those plans. 

We appreciate the excellent information provided at the September 30th meeting by State 
Board staff, who allowed for ample discussion and dialogue by the attendees. Based on 
the staff presentation, we respectfully submit the following points: 

• All applicants should be allowed to apply for DAC project status if a project is
clearly located in and benefitting a DAC area as defined in the Guidelines. DAC
project status should not be limited to DAC applicants only (i.e., a JPA applicant on
behalf of one or more of its DACs);

• To expedite an application’s eligibility for the upcoming round for Proposition 1
Storm Water Grant funding, GWMA supports:

 

     AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



o The creation of a minimum criteria checklist. Specifically, the suggestion
presented at the meeting was for the SWRCB to create a checklist to be
signed by the applicant certifying that all legislative and SWRCB
requirements had been met in the Storm Water Plan

o The submittal of WMPs or EWMPs to one or more DWR-accepted IRWMPs
for future inclusion as the required official step in order to meet the current
Prop 1 Stormwater Grant schedule

o Clarification that Watershed Management Programs approved by the Los
Angeles Regional Water Board do not have to be amended to be deemed
Storm Water Resource Plans consistent with the requirements of SB 985;
rather, supplemental plans, reports, and/or technical memos will be allowed
to address the differences in requirements of the WMPs and the Storm
Water Management Plans. This will allow future changes/additions to the
Storm Water Plan without affecting the WMPs;

o Strengthening of the footnote on page 12 of the Storm Water Resources
Plan Guidelines to say that WMPs and EWMPs are deemed equivalent to
Water Resource Plans as long as the elements required by SB 985 that
were not included in the WMPs are documented and explained.

o Clarification that the Reasonable Assurance Analyses included in WMPs
are recognized as constituting metric-based analyses.

o Clarification that supplemental materials may be used to prioritize projects
like green streets that were shown generally in WMPs and RAAs but not
individually prioritized and specify substitute projects that will be included in
WMPs when they are amended through the adaptive management process.

• GWMA suggests that the local match for implementation projects should allow
costs incurred back to the date that SB 985 was signed by the Governor and filed
with the Secretary of State (September 25, 2014). This is consistent with earlier
grant programs and recognizes that Permittees have been working to prepare
projects for grant funding.

• GWMA recommends that ALL applicants eligible to receive Prop 1 funds, including
NGOs and Private Water Utilities, be required to prepare a Storm Water Plan prior
to applying for grants;

• GWMA recommends that a portion of the Prop 1 grant funds be set aside to start a
low interest stormwater revolving fund (no interest to be charged for DAC projects)



 
 

that would not have to meet EPA’s requirement for a dedicated revenue stream for 
repayment; 

 
• GWMA does not support the current approach to the 85th percentile storm in the 

Storm Water Plan Guidelines. It is contrary to what many watersheds can actually 
capture and is difficult to accurately demonstrate from the collective performance 
of individual projects. Rather, the Watershed Management Program approach to 
the 85th percentile storm should be the basis for addressing the 85th percentile 
storm in the Guidelines since the Los Angles MS4 Permit “contains provisions to 
encourage, where feasible, retention of the storm water from the 85th percentile 
storm event” and the runoff from the 85th percentile storm event is the storm water 
quality design volume for designing structural best management practices. 

 
Again, thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on the draft guidelines.  Please 
don’t hesitate to contact us if you have any questions.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Christopher S. Cash 
GWMA Chair 

 



REVISED 
NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENTS, 

PUBLIC WORKSHOPS, AND ADOPTION MEETING 

DRAFT STORM WATER RESOURCE PLAN GUIDELINES 
AND 

DRAFT PROPOSITION 1 STORM WATER GRANT PROGRAM FUNDING GUIDELINES 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water 
Board) will receive public comments on the following draft guidelines: 

1) Draft Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines (Plan Guidelines) dated August 2015 and issued
in accordance with Water Code sections 10561, 10561.5, 10562, 10563, 10565, and 10573
(Senate Bill 985, Pavley, Statutes of 2014); and

2) Draft Proposition 1 Storm Water Grant Program Funding Guidelines (Funding Guidelines),
dated August 2015 and issued in accordance with Water Code section 79747
(Proposition 1, the Water Quality, Supply, and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014).

NOTICE IS ADDITIONALLY HEREBY GIVEN that State Water Board staff will conduct three 
public outreach meetings. Interested parties may provide oral comments on the Draft Plan 
Guidelines and the Draft Funding Guidelines at these meetings. Details of the public meetings 
are provided below. 

Tuesday, September 29, 2015 – 9:00 a.m. 
Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board – Fresno Office 

Kings Conference Room 
1685 E Street, Suite 200 

Fresno, CA 93706 

Wednesday, September 30, 2015 – 9:00 a.m. 
Orange County Water District Office - Board Room 

18700 Ward Street 
Fountain Valley, CA 92708 

Thursday, October 1, 2015 – 9:00 a.m. 
San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board Office Room 1 

1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400 
Oakland, CA 94612 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



- 2 - 

NOTICE IS ADDITIONALLY HEREBY GIVEN that the State Water Board will hold a public 
Board Workshop to hear public comments on the Draft Plan Guidelines and Draft Funding 
Guidelines.  Details of the State Water Board workshop are provided below. 

Wednesday, October 7, 2015 Tuesday, October 6, 2015 – 9:00 a.m. 
Joe Serna Jr. - CalEPA Headquarters Building 

Coastal Hearing Room 
1001 I Street, Second Floor 

Sacramento, CA 95814 

NOTICE IS ADDITIONALLY HEREBY GIVEN that the State Water Board will hold a public 
Board Meeting to consider adoption of the Draft Plan Guidelines.  Details of the State Water Board 
Meeting are provided below. 

Tuesday, December 1, 2015 – 9:00 a.m. 
Joe Serna Jr. - CalEPA Headquarters Building 

Coastal Hearing Room 
1001 I Street, Second Floor 

Sacramento, CA 95814 

The State Water Board meeting for consideration of adoption of the Draft Funding Guidelines 
will be noticed under a separate public notice.  

BACKGROUND 
Draft Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 
The purpose of the Draft Plan Guidelines is to establish guidance for the development of Storm 
Water Resource Plans in accordance with Water Code section 10565.  Water Code section 
10563(c)(1) requires a public agency to develop a Storm Water Resource Plan (Plan) as a 
condition of receiving funds from any bond approved by voters after January 2014.  Prop. 1 is a 
water bond measure that, among other funds, authorized $200 million in grants for multi-benefit 
storm water management projects. 

Existing planning documents (i.e. watershed management plans, integrated regional water 
management plans, urban water management plans, or similar plans) that include storm water 
and dry weather runoff capture and use as a component of its goals and objectives may be 
utilized as functionally equivalent plans;  if a planning document does not meet the standards of 
Water Code section 10560 et seq., a collection of local and regional plans may constitute a 
functional equivalent if the plans collectively meet the requirements of the Water Code section 
10562(c). 

The proposed Draft Plan Guidelines will serve as guidance for entities preparing a Storm Water 
Resource Plan, and assist the State Water Board and other bond fund-dispensing agencies in 
administering funds for storm water management projects.  As proposed, the Draft Plan 
Guidelines do not serve as a commitment to any specific project.  (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, § 
15378(b)(4).) 

Draft Proposition 1 Storm Water Grant Program Funding Guidelines 
The purpose of the Funding Guidelines is to establish the process and criteria that the State 
Water Board will use to solicit applications, evaluate and select proposals, and award grants for 
multi-benefit storm water management projects funded by the Proposition 1 Storm Water Grant 
Program Funding program.  Water Code section 79747 (Proposition 1, Chapter 7) provides 



- 3 - 

$200 million in grant funds for multi-benefit storm water management projects to assist in 
adapting water infrastructure systems to climate change and to provide incentives for water 
agencies throughout each watershed to collaborate in managing the region’s water resources. 
After bond and program administration costs, approximately $186 million will be available for 
projects. 

DOCUMENT AVAILABILITY 
The Draft Plan Guidelines, Draft Funding Guidelines, and all related documents are available for 
review online at:  http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/swgp/prop1/. 

You may request a paper copy of the Draft Plan Guidelines by contacting Ms. Rachael Pontious 
at (916) 341-6914 or Rachael.Pontious@waterboards.ca.gov. 

You may request a paper copy of the Draft Funding Guidelines by e-mailing the Division of 
Financial Assistance at: DFA_Grants@waterboards.ca.gov. 

Additional information on the public meetings can be found on the State Water Board web site 
at:  http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/calendar/. 

SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN COMMENTS 
The State Water Board will accept written comments on the Draft Plan Guidelines and the 
Draft Funding Guidelines.  Written comments must be received by 12:00 noon on  
Tuesday, October 13, 2015 and addressed to: 

Jeanine Townsend, Clerk to the Board 
State Water Resources Control Board 

1001 I Street, 24th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

Comment letters may be submitted electronically in PDF text format (less than 15 megabytes in 
total size), to the Clerk to the Board via e-mail at commentletters@waterboards.ca.gov.  If the 
file is greater than 15 megabytes in total size, then the comment letter may be submitted by fax 
at (916) 341-5620.  Please indicate on the transmittal subject line: “Comment Letter – Storm 
Water Resource Plan and Proposition 1 Funding Guidelines.” 

Couriers delivering comment letters must check in with lobby security personnel, who can 
contact Ms. Townsend at (916) 341-5600. 

PROCEDURAL MATTERS 
At the October 7, 2015 October 6, 2015 State Water Board Workshop, a quorum of the State 
Water Board may be present; however, no Board action will be taken at the workshop.  At the 
December 1, 2015 Board Adoption Meeting, the Board will consider adoption of the Plan 
Guidelines.  Participants will be given an opportunity to speak to the Board directly during the 
Board Workshop and summarize and supplement their written materials with oral presentations 
during the Board Adoption Meeting.  There will be no sworn testimony or cross-examination of 
participants.  However, the State Water Board and its staff may ask clarifying questions.   

No new evidence (e.g. photographs, data, testimony) may be submitted at the Board Adoption 
Meeting and all comments will be treated as non-evidentiary policy statements. 
To ensure a productive and efficient meeting in which all participants have an opportunity to 
participate, oral presentations at the Board Workshop and at the Board Adoption Meeting may 

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/swgp/prop1/
mailto:Rachael.Pontious@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:DFA_Grants@waterboards.ca.gov
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/calendar/
mailto:commentletters@waterboards.ca.gov


- 4 - 

be time-limited.  For other presentation recommendations, please go to the State Water Board’s 
web site at: http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/meetings/board_presentations.shtml. 

PARKING AND ACCESSIBILITY 
For directions to the Joe Serna, Jr. (CalEPA) Building and public parking information, please 
refer to the map on the State Water Board web site at: 
http://www.calepa.ca.gov/EPAbldg/location.htm. 

The CalEPA Building is accessible to persons with disabilities.  Individuals requiring special 
accommodations are requested to call (916) 341-5880 at least five working days prior to the 
meeting. Telecommunications Device for the Deaf (TDD) users may contact the California 
Relay Service at (800) 735-2929 or voice line at (800) 735-2922.  An audio broadcast of the 
meeting will be available via the Internet and can be accessed at: 
http://www.calepa.ca.gov/broadcast. Individuals requiring special accommodations to attend the 
public outreach meetings held outside of the CalEPA Building are requested to contact Rachael 
Pontious at the State Water Board by email at Rachael.pontious@waterboards.ca.gov or by 
telephone at (916) 341-6914 or to contact the facilities directly. 

All visitors to the CalEPA Building are required to sign in and obtain a badge at the Visitor 
Services Center located just inside the main entrance (10th Street entrance).  Valid picture 
identification may be required.  Please allow up to 15 minutes for receiving security clearance. 

FUTURE NOTICES 
The State Water Board will hold the public meetings and workshop at the time and place noted 
above.  Any change in the date, time, and place of the public workshop and public comment 
period will be provided on the State Water Board electronic mailing list. Notice of any persons 
desiring to receive future notices concerning the Draft Plan Guidelines and/or the Draft Funding 
Guidelines must subscribe to the State Water Board’s email distribution list. The subscription 
form is located at: 
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/resources/email_subscriptions/swrcb_subscribe.shtml.  
To subscribe, select the “Financial Assistance (Grants and Loans)” category, then check the box 
for “Storm Water Grant Program,” and provide the required information. 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
Please direct all questions regarding the Draft Plan Guidelines to Ms. Rachael Pontious at 
(916) 341-5523 or Rachael.Pontious@waterboards.ca.gov. 

Please direct all questions regarding the Draft Funding Guidelines to Ms. Michele Stebbins at 
(916) 341-5665 or Michele.Stebbins@waterboards.ca.gov. 

September 15, 2015 
Date Jeanine Townsend 

Clerk to the Board 

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/meetings/board_presentations.shtml
http://www.calepa.ca.gov/EPAbldg/location.htm
http://www.calepa.ca.gov/broadcast
mailto:Rachael.pontious@waterboards.ca.gov
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/resources/email_subscriptions/swrcb_subscribe.shtml
mailto:Rachael.Pontious@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:Michele.Stebbins@waterboards.ca.gov


AGENDA ITEM NO. 8

























DRAFT 

Storm Water Resource Plan 

Guidelines 

August 26, 2015 DRAFT 
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8



 
2 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

This page intentionally left blank 



 
3 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

Table of Contents 
Foreword ....................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Acronyms and Key Words ............................................................................................................................. 5 

Definitions ..................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Section I: Purpose ................................................................................................................................... 12 

Section II: Introduction and Background .................................................................................................... 12 

Section III: Applicability of Guidelines per Water Code section 10563 .................................................... 14 

Section IV:  Water Code Requirements for Storm Water Resource Plans .................................................. 14 

Section V: Standard Provisions ................................................................................................................... 14 

Section VI: Storm Water Resource Plan Guidance...................................................................................... 16 

Plan Checklists………………………………………………………………………………..Appendix A 

Weblinks……………………………………………………………………………………….Appendix B 

Note:  Italicized text throughout this document is text that is directly referencing the 
California Water Code. 



 
4 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

Foreword 
Past approaches to storm water management have focused on limited treatment prior to 
conveyance off-site and ultimately into receiving waters.  The municipal separate storm sewer 
systems (MS4s) and flood control infrastructure used for this purpose may have been 
successful in terms of flood control and some degree of treatment; however many past 
approaches have not been adequate to fully address the water quality impacts from storm water 
discharges while providing multiple benefits such as water supply augmentation and ecological 
enhancement of the local watershed.  In general, the transport of storm water from the location 
of rainfall via constructed municipal storm drain systems (pipelines, reinforced channels, 
outfalls, etc.) has caused downstream hydromodification and destabilization of water bodies, 
and impacted beneficial uses of those receiving surface water bodies. 

More recent approaches to storm water management seek to replicate natural hydrology and 
watershed processes by managing storm water and dry weather runoff onsite or within the 
watershed where rainfall occurs.  These approaches yield multiple water quality benefits by 
reducing the volume of runoff – and the pollutants it contains – delivered to receiving waters.  
Such approaches are in accordance with the State Water Resources Control Board’s (State 
Water Board’s) guiding principles that view storm water and dry weather runoff as a resource, 
potentially contributing to the following benefits in addition to flood control: 

• Supply of fresh water to surface water bodies to enhance stream flows (that are
hydrologically-connected to ground water aquifers) and to sustain aquatic life and wildlife
habitats;

• Recharge of groundwater aquifers under developed impervious areas to support
sustainable groundwater levels and increase local water supplies;

• Supply of fresh water to increase recreational uses including hunting, swimming, fishing,
and boating;

• Augmentation of drinking water supplies through rainwater harvesting and/or recharge;
• Elimination or minimization of erosion and/or destabilized land; and
• Minimization of hydromodification (unnatural alteration of natural drainage features) of

streams, rivers, wetlands and lakes.

The nature and water quality impacts of storm water discharges vary from region to region; 
therefore, municipalities may identify ways to tailor their watershed storm water management 
measures to best address their watershed conditions while complying with regulatory 
requirements to control storm water discharges.  The State Water Board’s objective for the 
adoption of these Guidelines is to provide baseline requirements for watershed-based (or sub-
watershed-based) storm water resource plans to be used for funding of storm water and dry 
weather runoff capture projects funded partially or entirely with State funds.  It is not intended 
that the guidance provided in these Guidelines be applied to individual projects. 



 

 

5 
   August 26, 2015 

DRAFT                                                                                                         Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 
 

Acronyms and Key Words 
 

CEDEN    California Environmental Data Exchange Network 

CEQA    California Environmental Quality Act 

GAMA    Groundwater Ambient Monitoring and Assessment 

Guidelines   Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

HU    Hydrologic unit 

IRWM    Integrated Regional Water Management 

IRWMP   Integrated Regional Water Management Plan 

LID    Low impact development 

MS4    Municipal separate storm sewer system 

NPDES   National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

Plan    Storm Water Resource Plan 

Regional Water Board Regional Water Quality Control Board 

SB    Senate Bill 

State Water Board  State Water Resources Control Board 

SWAMP   Surface Water Ambient Monitoring Program 

TMDL    Total Maximum Daily Load 

USEPA   United States Environmental Protection Agency 

USGS    United State Geological Survey 

WDRs    Waste discharge requirements 

  



 
6 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

Definitions 

303(d) List – refers to section 303(d) of the Clean Water Act that requires each state to 
periodically submit a list of impaired water to the U.S. EPA.  Impaired waters are 
identified and listed surface water bodies that do not comply with established water 
quality standards for one or more constituent/parameter.  Once the impaired waters 
are identified and placed on the adopted 303(d) list, section 303(d) requires that the 
State establish total maximum daily loads that provide waste load allocations and load 
allocations for the listed water body’s compliance with water quality standards. 

85th Percentile 24-hour Storm Event - The 85th percentile rainfall event is the event whose 
precipitation total is greater than or equal to 85 percent of all 24-hour storms on an 
annual basis. The 85th percentile 24-hour storm measure is based on local 
precipitation data within the watershed and differs geographically. 

Basin Plan – a Water Quality Control Plan adopted by a State or Regional Water Board that 
identifies: 1) beneficial uses to be protected; 2) water quality objectives for the 
reasonable protection of beneficial uses; and 3) a program of implementation for 
achieving the water quality objectives as established by the State or Regional Water 
Boards. 

Beneficial Uses - the uses of a water body (streams, lakes, rivers, and other water bodies) that 
support human health, aquatic life and wildlife. Beneficial uses of a water body are 
identified in a Basin Plan.  The applicable Basin Plan and/or water quality control plans 
set forth narrative and numeric water quality objectives to protect the beneficial uses.  
Example of common beneficial uses include: domestic use, municipal use, fish and 
wildlife preservation and enhancement, aquaculture, recreational use, water quality 
use, stockwatering, irrigation, frost protection, heat control, power use, mining use, and 
industrial use. 

Best Management Practices (BMPs) – practices that have been proven to manage storm 
water and dry weather runoff.  Guidance for design, construction and implementation 
of best management practices is available through guidance documents provided by 
municipalities and/or professional associations such as the California Stormwater 
Quality Association (CASQA) BMP Handbooks (Industrial & Commercial BMP 
Handbook, Municipal BMP Handbook, New Development & Redevelopment BMP 
Handbook, and BMP Handbook Training) located at 
https://www.casqa.org/resources/bmp-handbooks.  Additional information and 
guidance is available on the International Stormwater BMP Database website at: 
http://www.bmpdatabase.org/.  

Community – a population of persons residing in the same locality under the same local 
governance. 

https://www.casqa.org/resources/bmp-handbooks
http://www.bmpdatabase.org/


 

 

7 
   August 26, 2015 

DRAFT                                                                                                         Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 
 

Disadvantaged Community – a community with a median household income less than 80 
percent of the statewide average (PRC § 75005[g]). 

Dry Weather Runoff - surface runoff flow produced by non-storm water resulting from irrigation 
and other residential, commercial, and industrial activities. 

Geographic Information System (GIS) – a database system designed to capture, store, 
manipulate, analyze, manage, and present all types of spatial or geographic data. 

Green Infrastructure - site-specific practices and infrastructure that mimic storm water 
management from natural hydrology and reduces effective imperviousness.  Examples 
of green infrastructure include green street medians, green roofs, and porous 
pavement. 

Groundwater - subsurface water that occurs beneath the water table in soils and geologic 
formations that are fully saturated. Where groundwater occurs in a saturated geologic 
unit that contains sufficient permeable thickness to yield significant quantities of water 
to wells and springs may be defined as an aquifer. A groundwater basin is defined as a 
hydrogeologic unit containing one large aquifer or several connected and interrelated 
aquifers. 

Groundwater Recharge - the augmentation of groundwater by natural or artificial means. 

Impaired Water Body – surface waters identified and assessed by a State and Regional Water 
Board as impaired due to non-compliance with water quality objectives and potential 
impact on designated beneficial uses after application of technology-based controls.  
Further information on the 303(d) list of impaired water bodies compiled by the State 
Water Resources Control Board pursuant to section 303(d) of the Clean Water Act 
(CWA) is located at the following website: 
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/water_quality_assessment/. 

Integrated Regional Water Management Plan – an integrated regional water management 
plan is a plan that describes the major water-related objectives and conflicts within a 
region. The plan: (1) considers a broad variety of water management strategies, (2) 
identifies water demand and supply management alternatives, water quality 
protections, and environmental stewardship actions to provide long-term, reliable, and 
high-quality water supply while protecting the environment.  An integrated regional 
water management plan identifies disadvantaged communities in the region and takes 
the water-related needs of those communities into consideration. 

Low Impact Development (LID) – a storm water management strategy aimed at maintaining or 
restoring the natural hydrologic functions of a site or project to achieve natural 
resource protection objectives and fulfill environmental regulatory requirements;  LID 
employs a variety of natural and constructed features that reduce the rate of runoff, 
filter pollutants out of runoff, facilitate the infiltration of water into the ground and 
replenishment of local natural surface water systems, and/or allow for on-site storage 
of water for a beneficial use. 

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/water_quality_assessment/


 
8 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

Multi-Benefit / Multiple Benefit Projects – storm water and dry weather runoff capture projects 
that provide more than one of the following benefits or meet more than one of the 
following objectives: 

a. Wetland creation and restoration (Wat. Code, § 10561(g))
b. Riverside [riparian] habitats (Wat. Code, § 10561(g))
c. Instream flows (Wat. Code, § 10561(g))
d. Increase in park and recreation lands (Wat. Code, § 10561(g))
e. Urban green space (Wat. Code, § 10561(g))
f. Augmenting recreation opportunities for communities (Wat. Code, § 10561(h))
g. Increased tree canopy (Wat. Code, § 10561(h))
h. Reduced heat island effect (Wat. Code, § 10561(h))
i. Improved air quality (Wat. Code, § 10561(h))
j. Maximizes:

i. Water quality (Wat. Code, § 10562(b)(2))
ii. Water supply (Wat. Code, § 10562(b)(2))
iii. Flood management (Wat. Code, § 10562(b)(2))
iv. Environmental benefits (Wat. Code, § 10562(b)(2))
v. Other community benefits (Wat. Code, § 10562(b)(2))

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit Program – A federal 
regulatory permitting program administered to control water pollution from regulated 
point sources that discharge pollutants into waters of the United States. Point sources 
are discrete conveyances such as pipes or man-made ditches. The United States 
Environmental Protection Agency has authorized the State and Regional Water 
Boards to administer the federal NPDES permit program in California. 

Public Agency – a state agency or department, special district, joint powers authority, city, 
county, city and county, or other political subdivision of the state.  An entity or entities 
that act on behalf of a public agency is considered a public agency for the purpose of 
these Guidelines. 

Rain Water – precipitation on any public or private parcel that has not entered an offsite storm 
drain system or channel, a flood control channel, or any other stream channel, and has 
not previously been placed to beneficial use. 

Small Disadvantaged Community – a community with a population of 20,000 persons or less 
with a median household income (MHI) less than 80% (80 percent) of the statewide 
average (PRC § 75005[g]). 

Stakeholder – an individual, group, coalition, agency, or other entity that is involved in, affected 
by, or has an interest in the implementation of a specific program or project. 

Storm Water – temporary surface water runoff and drainage generated by immediately 
preceding storms. 



 
9 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

Storm Water and Dry Weather Runoff Capture – to intercept, store, manage, and use storm 
water and dry weather runoff, thereby reducing the volume of runoff exiting a site. 

Structural Control - often associated with low impact development (LID), structural control 
measures are designed and sized to achieve a specific numeric storm water control 
performance (e.g., storm water capture, water quality treatment, etc.).  Examples 
include, but are not limited to: bioretention areas, pervious pavements, green roofs, 
cisterns, and storm water infiltration basins. 

Sustainable - resources used at a rate at which they can be replenished naturally. 

Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) – a written plan that describes how an impaired water 
body will meet water quality standards.  A TMDL contains:  (1) a measurable feature to 
describe attainment of the water quality standard(s); (2) a description of required 
actions to remove the impairment; and, (3) an allocation of responsibility among 
dischargers to act, either in the form of actions or through the establishment of water 
quality conditions for which each discharger is responsible. A TMDL must be adopted 
by both the applicable Regional Water Board and the State Water Board, and 
approved by the Office of Administrative Law.  TMDLs developed by and subsequently 
adopted by the USEPA shall be considered as an adopted and approved TMDL for 
purposes of these Guidelines. 

Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) – requirements that are adopted by the Regional 
Water Boards to protect the waters of the state for the use and enjoyment by the 
people of California.  

Water Supply – Supply of water for beneficial uses that include, but are not limited to, municipal 
and domestic supply, aquatic life and wildlife, agricultural irrigation and non-potable 
water uses. 

Water Quality Objectives – State-adopted regulatory limits or levels of water quality elements 
or biological characteristics to reasonably protect the beneficial uses of water or to 
prevent problems within a specific area.  Water quality objectives may be numeric or 
narrative.  Under the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, the State Water Board 
and Regional Water Boards have primary responsibility for the coordination and 
control of water quality, including the authority to implement the Clean Water Act.  
Porter-Cologne (§ 13240) directs the Water Boards to set water quality objectives via 
adoption of Basin Plans that conform to all state policies for water quality control. 

Water Quality Standards - State-adopted and USEPA-approved ambient standards for water 
bodies that prescribe the use of the water body and establish the water quality criteria 
that must be met to protect these uses. The three components of water quality 
standards include: the beneficial designated use or uses of a water body (for example, 
drinking water supply, contact recreation (swimming), and aquatic life support), the 
numerical and narrative water-quality criteria that are necessary to protect the use or 
uses of that particular water body, and antidegradation provisions.  The federal Clean 
Water Act (CWA) is the primary federal water pollution control regulation.  The State 



 
10 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

Water Board is designated as the State Water Pollution Control Agency for all 
purposes under the CWA.   

Wetlands - areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or groundwater at a frequency and 
duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do support, a 
prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands 
generally include swamps, marshes, bogs, and similar areas. For further detail see the 
State Water Board’s Water Quality Control Policy for Wetland Area Protection and 
Dredged or Fill Permitting.  



 

 

11 
   August 26, 2015 

DRAFT                                                                                                         Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page is intentionally blank) 

  



 
12 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

Section I: Purpose 
The purpose of the Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines (Guidelines) is to establish guidance 
for the development of Storm Water Resource Plans in accordance with Water Code section 
10565 (as amended by Senate Bill 985, Stats. 2014, ch. 555, § 5).  Water Code section 10563, 
subdivision (c)(1), requires a Storm Water Resource Plan (Plan) as a condition of receiving 
funds for storm water and dry weather runoff capture projects from any bond approved by voters 
after January 2014.  This requirement applies to Proposition 1, the water bond measure 
approved by voters in November 2014, which authorized $200 million in grants for multi-benefit 
storm water management projects.  Water Code section 10565 requires the State Water Board 
to establish guidance for entities to develop Storm Water Resource Plans. 

These Guidelines apply to public agencies that receive grant funds for storm water and dry 
weather runoff capture projects, as further described in Section III of these Guidelines.  Each 
entity should develop a watershed-based Storm Water Resource Plan consistent with these 
Guidelines and compliant with the Water Code, prior to applying for bond funds associated with 
individual storm water and dry weather runoff capture projects.  A Plan meeting the provisions of 
the Water Code need not be referred to as a “Storm Water Resource Plan.”  Existing planning 
documents and local ordinances may be utilized as a functionally equivalent Plan, including but 
not limited to: watershed management plans1, integrated resource plans, urban water 
management plans, or similar plans that include storm water and dry weather runoff capture and 
use as a component of their goals and objectives.  The watershed approach is essential to 
integrate storm water management with other basic aspects of aquatic resource protection and 
overall water management including flood control, water supply, and habitat conservation.  If a 
planning document does not meet the standards of Water Code section 10560 et seq., a 
collection of local plans and ordinances and regional plans may constitute a functional 
equivalent, if the plans and ordinances collectively meet all of the requirements of Water Code 
section 10560 et seq. 

These Guidelines serve as a guide for the State Water Board and other bond fund-dispensing 
agencies to use in administering funds.  These Guidelines will not result in a direct or indirect 
physical change in the environment, and do not a serve as a commitment to any specific project 
(Cal. Code of Regs, tit. 14, § 15378(b)(4)). 

Section II: Introduction and Background 
The State Water Board and Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Water Board) 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permitting program for municipal 
separate storm sewer systems (MS4s) has historically focused requirements for storm water 
and dry weather runoff capture and use on new development and significant redevelopment, 
and not on modifying existing landscapes to increase storm water and dry weather runoff 
capture and use.  Watershed-based planning and implementation efforts to retrofit the existing 
developed landscapes with green infrastructure are needed to restore storm water and dry 
weather runoff infiltration capacity that was previously overlooked in existing traditional storm 
water management infrastructure and practices.  Existing technologies and engineering 
approaches, coupled with the use of the natural physical and biological functions of soils and 
plants, allow concurrent capture, treatment and reuse of storm water and dry weather runoff, 
and provide cost-effective approaches to achieving healthy watersheds and other positive 
environmental outcomes.  Individual projects within a watershed can range from small retrofits 

1 This also encompasses Watershed Management Programs and Enhanced Watershed Management Programs as 
set forth in the LA County and City of Long Beach MS4 Permits (Order Nos. R4-21012-0175 and R4-2014-0024). 



 
13 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

such as standardized parkway curb cuts and tree wells in public rights-of-way, to creation of 
constructed natural wetlands and/or installation of underground vaults that store and infiltrate or 
reuse the captured runoff.  Increasing storm water and dry weather runoff capture and infiltration 
in developed areas restores lost watershed processes and provides multiple benefits, including 
but not limited to: improved water supply sustainability, increased groundwater supplies, 
increased base-flow in creeks, increased riparian tree canopy providing a cooling effect on the 
earth’s surface, reduced greenhouse gas emissions inherent in water transport and treatment, 
reduced local flooding, reduced pollutant loads discharged to surface waters, restored native 
habitat, and increased recreational and green space. 

Many MS4 permits include requirements for low impact development (LID) implementation and 
green infrastructure.  In many cases, however, watershed-based implementation of structural 
measures associated with LID and green infrastructure is either not considered at all or is not 
required to contribute to storm water and dry weather runoff capture and infiltration of drainage 
areas beyond the site where development is occurring.  Watershed-based storm water 
management offers an effective approach to complying with MS4 permit requirements.  
Regional Water Boards are starting to allow alternative permit compliance pathways that 
emphasize more wide-scale storm water and dry weather runoff capture planning, analysis, and 
implementation on a watershed or regional basis.2  The Los Angeles Regional Water Board is 
among the first of the Regional Water Boards to incorporate a watershed storm water 
management approach that provides strong incentives for storm water and dry weather runoff 
capture across the watershed in its Los Angeles County MS4 permit. (Order R4-2012-0175, 
NPDES Permit No. CAS004001). 

Storm water planning and management on a watershed basis involves collaboration of local 
governments, utilities, and other stakeholder groups to analyze the hydrology, storm drain/runoff 
conveyances systems, opportunity sites, and other habitat or community needs within sub-
watersheds.  Design of green infrastructure to capture dry weather runoff should correspond to 
a watershed-based plan to achieve multiple benefits that supports water quality protection of 
surface and ground waters within the watershed.  Coordinated storm water management, 
monitoring, and evaluation on a watershed basis minimizes monitoring costs and maximizes the 
value of monitoring results across programs intended to protect beneficial uses. 

In the 1990s, local storm water agencies and professional associations began to develop 
guidance documents for the design and implementation of storm water capture for specified 
percentiles of rainfall frequencies (e.g., the volume associated with the 85th percentile 24-hour 
rain event); however, there have been many challenges associated with compliance with storm 
water waste load allocations established in existing Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs).  In 
the early 2000s, literature and guidance documents based on extensive research and produced 
by MS4 permittees, Regional Water Boards, academia and other stakeholders, recommended 
the establishment of a water quality design storm for water quality protection on a watershed 
basis.   

The Stormwater Management Planning Act implemented through Water Code section 10563 
substantively focuses on diverting runoff from existing storm drains, channels, or conveyance 
structures to sites (particularly publicly owned sites) that can clean, store, infiltrate and/or use 
the runoff.  As with the development and adoption of recent Regional Water Board storm water 
permits (such as in Los Angeles and San Francisco Bay Area regions), the need for analysis 
during the watershed management planning stage is necessary to demonstrate a reasonable 

2 E.g., Central Coast Water Board Resolution R3-2013-0032 (post-construction storm water management 
requirements) allows municipal storm water permittees to use Watershed Plans to justify alternative compliance for 
site-based runoff retention and peak management requirements. 



 
14 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

assurance that proposed storm water management plan elements will successfully achieve 
required water quality outcomes when implemented.  Stakeholders, the Water Boards, and 
USEPA staff are working collaboratively to conduct appropriate assurance analyses, and 
compile findings, conclusions, and recommendations in publicly available guidance manuals. 

Section III: Applicability of Guidelines per Water Code 
section 10563 

(Note - Italicized text throughout this document is text that is directly referencing the California 
Water Code.) 

The development of a stormwater resource plan and compliance with this part in accordance 
with Section 10565 shall be required to receive grants for stormwater and dry weather runoff 
capture projects from a bond act approved by the voters after January 1, 2014 (Wat. Code,  § 
10563 (c)(1)).   

These Guidelines [and the associated Water Code provisions] do not apply to: 

a) Funds provided for the purpose of developing a [Storm Water Resource Plan; or]

b) A grant for a disadvantaged community as defined in Section 79505.5, with a population
of 20,000 or less, and that is not a co-permittee for [an MS4] National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) permit issued to a municipality with a population greater
than 20,000. (Wat. Code,  § 10563(c) et seq.)

Implementation of Plans prepared per these Guidelines shall not interfere with or prevent the 
exercise of authority by a public agency to carry out its programs, projects, or 
responsibilities…[nor shall these Guidelines] affect requirements imposed under any other law 
(Wat. Code,  § 10563(a) & (b)). 

Section IV:  Water Code Requirements for Storm Water 
Resource Plans 

To be deemed consistent with requirements in section 10560 et seq. of the Water Code, Plans 
should be developed and implemented consistent with the guidance provided in Sections V 
through VI of these Guidelines.  If certain guidance is not relevant on a watershed-specific 
and/or site-specific basis, the Plan should clearly state the rationale for such determination.  
Storm Water Resource Plans must address all mandatory elements in these Guidelines to be 
deemed consistent with Water Code section 10560 et seq.  See Appendix A for a checklist of 
Water Code requirements and State Water Board guidance for Storm Water Resource Plans. 

Section V: Standard Provisions 
Each Storm Water Resource Plan should include or provide formal reference to the following 
provisions. 

A. CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) COMPLIANCE 

Implementation of activities and individual projects per the Storm Water Resource Plan 
must be in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Public 
Resources Code § 21000 et seq.). 



 
15 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

B. CONSISTENCY WITH WATER QUALITY CONTROL PLANS AND APPLICABLE 
WATER QUALITY CONTROL POLICIES 

The Storm Water Resource Plan must be consistent with, and assist in compliance with, 
applicable federal and state regulations and policies, including State Water Board plans 
and policies, and Regional Water Board water quality control plans (Basin Plans), 
including TMDLs adopted by the Regional Water Board. (Wat. Code,  § 10562, subd. 
(b)(5)).  See Appendix B for web links to the State Water Board plans and policies and 
the Regional Water Board Basin Plans. 

C. SUBMISSION TO ENTITIES OVERSEEING INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER 
MANAGEMENT PLANS AND OTHER LOCAL PLANS 

Upon development, [a Storm Water Resource Plan must] be submitted to any applicable 
integrated regional water management group. Upon receipt, the Integrated Regional 
Water Management group shall incorporate the [Storm Water Resource Plan] into its 
integrated regional water management plan (Wat. Code, § 10562, subd. (b)(7)).  

The Plan should identify the existing integrated regional water management plan 
(IRWMP) into which the Plan will be incorporated, along with identification of other local 
plans that could be affected by or could affect the Plan (e.g., local watershed plans, 
groundwater management plans, salinity and nitrate management plans), as applicable. 

Storm water management on a watershed basis provides for a combination of storm water 
management objectives and multiple benefits throughout the watershed or sub-
watershed.  Therefore, the Plan should discuss how the various storm water 
management objectives within the watershed will protect or improve water quality, 
water supply reliability, and/or achieve other objectives.  The Plan should include a 
discussion of the added benefits to integration of multiple storm water management 
strategies, as compared to stand-alone projects.  The Plan should also discuss how its 
objectives and projects fit into the broader water management goals of the applicable 
IRWMP. 

D. CONSISTENCY WITH APPLICABLE NPDES AND WASTE DISCHARGE PERMITS 

All Storm Water Resource Plans must be implemented in accordance with applicable 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits, waste discharge 
requirements (WDRs), Areas of Special Biological Significance (ASBS) Compliance 
Plans (State Water Board Resolution No. 2012-0012), and/or conditional waivers issued 
by the State and/or Regional Water Boards. (Wat. Code,  § 10562, subds. (b)(5) & (6)) 

E. MODIFICATION OF A RIVER OR STREAM CHANNEL 

Projects within the Plan that include substantial change or use of any material from a 
river, stream, or lake should avoid and minimize erosion, sediment transport, and 
hydromodification, and fully mitigate environmental impacts resulting from the project (for 
example, California Fish and Game Code § 1600 et seq.). 

F. MONITORING 

To assess the effectiveness of Plan implementation on a watershed basis, Storm Water 
Resource Plans should include a monitoring component to collect statistically meaningful 
data.  Monitoring requirements associated with applicable MS4 permit(s) and/or funding 
contracts should be included in the Plan.  For individual projects within a watershed that 
may impact or have a potential to impact water quality, a monitoring component that 



 
16 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

ensures the integration of existing local, regional, or statewide monitoring efforts should 
be included.3   Watershed-wide and individual project data should be stored in 
centralized local, regional, or statewide water quality data collection systems. 

Section VI: Storm Water Resource Plan Guidance 
A. DESCRIPTION OF WATERSHED AND SUB-WATERSHEDS 

The [State Water Board] shall establish guidance…[to define]…the appropriate 
geographic scale of watersheds for storm water resource planning (Wat. Code, 
§ 10565, subd. (c)).  The following constitutes such guidance.

A watershed is defined as the region draining into a river, river system, or other body of 
water above a particular point.  The United States Geological Survey (USGS) designates 
watershed hydrologic units (HU) at six levels (see Table 1). 

Table 1. USGS Watersheds 

Watershed Level Square miles 
(average) 

Acres 
(average) 

Region 177,560 113,638,400 
Subregion 16,800 10,752,000 
Basin 10,596 6,781,440 
Subbasin 700 448,000 
Watershed 227 40,000-250,000 
Subwatershed 40 10,000-40,000 

CalWater4 (CalWater version 2.2.1) delineates California watershed boundaries at 
several smaller scales in between the “Watershed” and “Subwatershed” levels 
delineated by the USGS.  The CalWater hierarchy of watershed designations consists of 
the following six levels of increasing specificity: Hydrologic Region (HR), Hydrologic Unit 
(HU), Hydrologic Area (HA), Hydrologic Sub-Area (HSA), Super Planning Watershed 
(SPWS), and Planning Watershed (PWS) (see Table 2 below). 

Table 2. CalWater Watersheds 

Watershed Level Square miles 
(average) 

Acres 
(average) 

Hydrologic Region (HR) 12,735 8,150,000 
Hydrologic Unit (HU) 672 430,000 
Hydrologic Area (HA) 244 156,000 
Hydrologic Sub-Area (HSA) 195 125,000 
Super Planning Watershed (SPWS) 78 50,000 
Planning Watershed (PWS) 5-16 3,000-10,000 

3 See “Urban Stormwater Best Management Practice Performance Monitoring” developed by USEPA at 
http://water.epa.gov/scitech/wastetech/guide/stormwater/upload/2006_10_31_guide_stormwater_monttoc.pdf 

4 CalWater version 2.2.1 also cross-references watershed codes implemented by the California Department of 
Water Resources, the California State Water Resources Control Board and Regional Water Quality Control Boards, 
as well as Hydrologic Unit Codes published by USGS for California and the nation. Standardized watershed 
delineations, codes, and names from both State and federal systems are used primarily to map, analyze, and 
document water resources and water quality information and regulations. 

http://water.epa.gov/scitech/wastetech/guide/stormwater/upload/2006_10_31_guide_stormwater_monttoc.pdf


 
17 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

In general, the boundary of each watershed area identified in a Storm Water Resource 
Plan should not be based on political boundaries, county lines, property boundaries, 
vegetation-type edges, highways, fences, federal reserves, or any other non-watershed 
boundary.  However, as necessary, political boundaries may be used to describe smaller 
watersheds, flat areas that encompass multiple small watersheds, or watersheds without 
distinct boundaries within the identified storm water management area.  The applicable 
watersheds and sub-watersheds should not be split or divided.  

In general, entities preparing a Storm Water Resource Plan should use the CalWater 
watershed designations, the USGS Hydrologic Unit (HU) designations, or an equivalent 
system such as defined by an applicable Integrated Regional Watershed Management 
(IRWM) Group, to determine and identify their watershed scale and boundaries, with the 
following caveats: 

1. The scale of the watershed selected should allow for quantitative analyses of
storm water and dry weather runoff patterns;

2. The watershed should be the largest practicable to allow for comprehensive and
integrated storm water management across multiple jurisdictional boundaries;

3. Plans should include multiple projects within the watershed to achieve
watershed-based storm water management objectives, and should not be
developed on a scale for the sole purpose of funding a single project;

4. Watersheds smaller than the CalWater “Planning Watershed” size should not be
used (smaller than 5 square miles in size); and

5. Plans based on the IRWM group watershed boundary are preferred.

Each Storm Water Resource Plan should include a description and boundary map of 
each watershed and sub-watershed applicable to the Plan. The Plan should specifically 
provide the following: 

i. An explanation of why the watershed(s) and sub-watershed(s) are appropriate for
storm water management with a multiple-benefit watershed approach;

ii. A description of the internal boundaries within the watershed (boundaries of
municipalities; service areas of individual water, wastewater, and land use
agencies, including those not involved in the Plan; groundwater basin
boundaries, etc.; preferably provided in a geographic information system (GIS)
file);

iii. A description of the water quality priorities within the watershed based on, at a
minimum, applicable TMDLs and consideration of water body-pollutant
combinations listed on the State’s Clean Water Act (CWA) Section 303(d) list of
water quality limited segments (i.e., impaired waters list);

iv. The general quality and identification of surface and ground water resources
within the watershed (preferably provided in a GIS file);

v. A description of the local entity or entities that provide potable water supplies,
and the estimated volume of potable water provided by the water suppliers;



 
18 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

vi. A description of native habitats, creeks, lakes, rivers, parks, and other natural or
open space within the sub-watershed boundaries; and

vii. An identification (quantitative, if possible) of the natural watershed processes that
occur within the sub-watershed and a description of how those natural watershed
processes have been disrupted within the sub-watershed (e.g., high levels of
imperviousness convert the watershed processes of infiltration and interflow to
surface runoff increasing runoff volumes; development commonly covers natural
surfaces and often introduces non-native vegetation, preventing the natural
supply of sediment from reaching receiving waters).

B. ORGANIZATION, COORDINATION, AND COLLABORATION 

The [State Water Board] shall establish guidance… [in]… identifying types of local 
agencies and nongovernmental organizations that need to be consulted in developing a 
[Storm Water Resource Plan] (Wat. Code,  § 10565, subd. (a)). The following constitutes 
such guidance.  

Many local agencies, especially water supply agencies, can directly benefit from projects 
that use storm water and dry weather runoff as a resource; these beneficiaries have the 
potential to be important partners and/or serve crucial inter-agency coordination roles.  
Local municipalities, school districts, universities, conservancies, and other public 
agencies that have public lands and easements for multiple benefit projects are also 
potentially valuable partners.  Consistent with the requirement to prioritize use of lands 
or easements in public ownership for storm water and dry weather runoff protects (Wat. 
Code,  § 10562, subd. (b)(8)), State, regional, and local government agencies, public 
and private utilities, and nongovernmental organizations should collaborate to address 
local, regional, and watershed-wide obstacles by working together to maximize 
environmental outcomes that result from joint government/organizational efforts.   

Nongovernmental organizations and state conservancies can provide essential 
leadership, innovation, and expertise in planning and conducting project design; 
assistance in developing effective collaborative approaches and engaging communities; 
and in-kind support and private funding.  The State Water Board encourages these 
collaborative efforts to build strong working partnerships between public agencies, 
nongovernmental organizations, and the communities served. 

In addition to collaboration with public agencies, utilities, conservancies, and 
nongovernmental organizations, entities developing Storm Water Resource Plans shall 
provide opportunities for community participation in Plan development and 
implementation.  (Wat. Code,  §10562, subd. (b)(4).) Accordingly, the following 
coordination and collaboration components should be addressed in a Storm Water 
Resource Plan: 

i. Description of existing regional water management group(s) implementing an
existing Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWMP);

ii. Identification of and coordination with all agencies and organizations (including,
but not limited to public agencies, nonprofit organizations, and  privately owned
water utilities) that need to participate and implement their own authorities and
mandates in order to address the storm water and dry weather runoff
management objectives of the Plan for the targeted watershed;



 
19 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

iii. Identification of nonprofit organizations working on storm water and dry weather
resource planning or management in the watershed;

iv. Identification and discussion of public engagement efforts and community
participation in Plan development;

v. Identification of required decisions that must be made by local, State or federal
regulatory agencies for Plan implementation and coordinated watershed-based or
regional monitoring and visualization;

vi. Planning and coordination of existing local governmental agencies, including
where necessary new or altered governance structures to support collaboration
among two or more lead local agencies responsible for Plan implementation;

vii. Description of the relationship of the Plan to other existing planning documents,
ordinances, and programs established by local agencies; and

viii. Explanation of why individual agency participation in various isolated efforts is
appropriate (if applicable).

C. QUANTITATIVE METHODS FOR IDENTIFICATION AND PRIORITIZATION OF 
STORM WATER AND DRY WEATHER RUNOFF CAPTURE PROJECTS 

The [State Water Board] shall establish guidance…[to define]…appropriate quantitative 
methods for identifying and prioritizing opportunities for storm water and dry weather 
runoff capture projects (Wat. Code,  § 10565, subd. (b)). The following constitutes such 
guidance. 

1. Identification of Projects Using Quantitative Measures

To be consistent with Water Code requirements, Plans shall include a metrics-based 
and integrated evaluation and analysis of multiple benefits to maximize water supply, 
water quality, flood management, environmental, and other community benefits within 
the watershed (Wat. Code,  § 10562, subd.(b)(2)).  Table 3 below lists and defines 
appropriate metrics for each benefit type.  Other metrics and methodologies for 
integrated evaluation and analysis of multiple benefits may be considered, as 
appropriate. 



 
20 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

TABLE 3. BENEFIT METRICS 

Benefit Example Metric(s) 

Water Quality 

Increased filtration and/or 
treatment of runoff 

Pollutant Load Reduction 

pounds (lbs)/day 
kilograms (kg)/day 

lbs/day 

Volume 

million gallons per day (mgd) 
acre-feet per year (afy) 

Contribution to compliance with 
applicable permit and/or  

TMDL requirements 

Nonpoint source pollution control 

Reestablished natural water 
drainage and treatment 

Conjunctive use 

Water Supply 

Water supply reliability 

Volume 

million gallons per day (mgd) 
acre-feet per year (afy) 

Groundwater management 

Runoff capture and reuse 

Augmentation or replacement 
of water supply 

Reduced dependance on 
imported water 

Water conservation 

Flood Management 

Decreased flood risk by reducing 
runoff rate and/or volume Rate and/or Volume 

cubic feet per second (cfs) 
acre-feet (af) 

and/or cubic feet Reduced sanitary sewer overflows 

Environmental 

Environmental and habitat 
protection and improvement 

Size and/or Rate 

acres 
cubic feet per second (cfs) 

carbon sequestration 

Wetland enhancement 
and/or creation 

Stream/riparian enhancement 
and/or instream flow augmentation 

Increased urban green space 

Reduced energy use, greenhouse 
gas emissions, or  

provides a carbon sink 
Reestablishment of the 

natural hydrograph 
Water termperature improvements 

Community 

Increased urban green space 
Size and/or Economics 

size of population served 
acres

cost savings 

Enhanced and/or created 
recreational and public use areas 

Reduced energy use 

Community involvement 



 
21 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

2. Integrated Metrics-Based Analysis

The Storm Water Resource Plan should include an integrated watershed metrics-
based analysis demonstrating that the proposed storm water and dry weather runoff
capture projects and programs within the watershed will collectively address the
Plan’s storm water management objectives and produce the proposed multiple
benefits identified per the guidance in Section VI.D. The following guidance provides
the minimum level of information to be included in an integrated metrics-based
analysis for different types of projects within the watershed.

a. Water Quality Projects Analysis

The Storm Water Resource Plan should include a watershed-based analysis of
how existing and proposed projects/programs comply with an applicable
NPDES permit. The analysis for water quality projects should simulate the
proposed watershed-based outcomes using modeling, calculations, pollutant
mass balances, water volume balances and/or other methods of analysis that
provide the following, as applicable:

i. Estimates of expected watershed-wide pollutant load reductions
expressed as concentration-based or mass-based in consideration of
critical conditions; and

ii. Estimates of the difference between the current and future pollutant
discharge/loading in the receiving water/watershed once the Plan is
implemented.

Estimated pollutant reductions should generally be expressed on a pollutant-
by-pollutant basis and should be consistent with the relevant averaging 
period(s)/duration (including the selected critical condition), if any, in the 
applicable NPDES permit.  Pollutant reductions may also be estimated using 
relationships between volume reduction and pollutant reduction, or by 
identifying a limiting pollutant that if addressed will ensure that all other 
pollutants are sufficiently reduced. 

In addition to the above, to the extent possible, the narrative should describe in 
a quantitative manner using the metrics in Table 3 (or other more appropriate 
metrics) how the project and programs in the watershed will contribute to the 
preservation, restoration, or enhancement of the following watershed 
processes, as applicable: 

i. Overland Flow:  Precipitation reaching the ground surface that does not
immediately infiltrate must run over the land surface (thus, “overland”
flow).  Most un-compacted vegetated soils have infiltration capacities of
one to several inches per hour at the ground surface, which exceeds the
rainfall intensity of even unusually intense storms. In contrast, pavement
and hard surfaces reduce the effective infiltration capacity of the ground
surface to zero, ensuring overland flow regardless of the meteorological
attributes of a storm.

ii. Groundwater Recharge and Infiltration:  Groundwater recharge and
infiltration are closely-linked hydrologic processes that are dominant
across much of California’s intact landscapes. Groundwater recharge



 
22 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

and infiltration can be thought of as the inverse of overland flow - 
precipitation that reaches the ground surface and does not immediately 
run off has most likely infiltrated.  Thus, on virtually any geologic material 
on all but the steepest slopes (or bare rock), infiltration of rainfall into the 
soil is inferred to be widespread, if not ubiquitous. With urbanization, 
changes to the process of infiltration are also quite simple to 
characterize: some (typically large) fraction of that once-infiltrating water 
is now converted to overland flow. 

iii. Interflow:  Interflow takes place following storm events as shallow
subsurface flow (usually within three to six feet of the surface) occurring
in a more permeable soil layer above a less permeable substrate.  In the
storm response of a stream, interflow provides a transition between the
rapid response from surface runoff and much slower stream discharge
from deeper groundwater.  In some geologic settings, the distinction
between “interflow” and “deep groundwater” is artificial and largely
meaningless; in others, however, there is a strong physical
discrimination between “shallow” and “deep” groundwater movement.
Urban development reduces infiltration and thus interflow, as well as
reducing the footprint of the area supporting interflow volume.

iv. Evapotranspiration:  In undisturbed humid-region watersheds, the
process of returning water to the atmosphere by direct evaporation from
soil and vegetation surfaces, and by the active transpiration by plants,
can account for nearly one-half of the total annual water balance; in
more arid regions, this fraction can be even higher.  Land development
covers soils with impervious surfaces and usually results in the
compaction of soils when grading occurs.  Native plants are often
replaced with turf, which typically has lower rates of evapotranspiration
unless irrigated throughout the summer months.

v. Delivery of Sediment to Receiving Waters: Sediment delivery into the
channel network is a critical process for the maintenance of various
habitat features in fluvial systems (although excessive sediment loading
from watershed disturbance can instead be a significant source of
degradation, and excessive fine sediment particles in substrate
composition can inhibit salmonid spawning).  Quantifying this rate can be
difficult; however, the overriding influence of slope gradient is widely
documented.  Maintenance of sediment delivery is essential to the health
of certain receiving-water types (as is organic matter delivery).
Development and non-native vegetation may also prevent the natural
supply of sediment from reaching the stream.

vi. Delivery of Organic Matter to Receiving Waters: The delivery of
organic matter is critical to receiving water health as it forms the basis for
the aquatic food web.  Delivery of organic matter follows similar
pathways as inorganic matter (e.g., sediment).  However, the dominant
amount and timing of delivery is often associated with the presence,
width, and composition of the vegetative riparian zone.

vii. Chemical and Biological Transformation: Chemical and biological
transformation encompasses the suite of watershed processes that alter
the chemical composition of water as it passes through the soil column



 

 

23 
   August 26, 2015 

DRAFT                                                                                                         Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 
 

on its path to, and after entry into, a receiving water.  The conversion of 
subsurface flow to overland flow in a developed landscape eliminates 
much of the opportunity for attenuation and transformations within the 
soil column, and this is commonly expressed as degraded water quality. 
The dependency of these processes on watershed conditions is complex 
in detail, but in general a greater residence time of storm water in the soil 
should be correlated with greater activity for this group of processes.  
 

b. Storm Water Capture and Use Projects Analysis 
 

The Plan should include an analysis of how collectively the projects and 
programs in the watershed will capture and use the proposed amount of storm 
water and dry weather runoff.  The analysis for storm water capture and use 
projects should simulate the proposed watershed-based outcomes using 
modeling, calculations, water balances and/or other methods of analysis that 
provide the following, as applicable: 
 

i. A demonstration that the collective performance of individual projects 
(within the project areas of the watershed) captures the dry weather 
runoff and, at minimum, the first flush from an 85th-percentile 24-hour 
storm event based on available watershed-specific rainfall data for 
beneficial use and proposed multiple benefits.  The volumetric threshold 
feasibly achievable may vary based on watershed characteristics and 
other water quality consideration; in such a case, the Plan must include 
discussion of the crucial multiple benefits resulting from the capture and 
use projects that do not meet the 85th percentile, 24-hour storm 
threshold. 

 
ii. A current assessment of storm water capture opportunities (preferably 

provided in a GIS file).  The assessment must include: 
 

a. Watershed map; 
b. All waterbodies (natural and manmade) within the watershed; 
c. List of known and suspected storm water and non-storm water 

pollutant sources in each storm water management area 
addressed by the Plan; 

d. Major existing storm water outfalls, major existing structural 
controls of storm and non-storm water (including, but not limited 
to, storm water pump stations, low-flow diversions, urban runoff 
treatment facilities, LIDs, detention basins used for storm water 
treatment, and other catch basin inserts/screens) that 
discharge to receiving waters; and 

e. Opportunity sites and/or drainage areas, and the corresponding 
volume of storm water and dry weather runoff that can be 
captured at the sites or within the drainage areas. 
 

c. Water Supply and Flood Control Projects Analysis 

The Plan should include an analysis of how the projects and programs in the 
watershed will collectively result in the proposed water supply augmentation 
and flood management objectives.  The analysis for water supply and flood 
control projects should simulate the proposed watershed-based outcomes 



 
24 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

using modeling, calculations, water balances and/or other methods of analysis 
that provide the following, as applicable: 

i. Estimated volume of storm water and/or dry weather runoff capture,
as percentage of total volume of storm water and dry weather runoff;

a. Estimated volume of storm water and/or dry weather runoff
infiltration into groundwater basin/aquifer; and/or

b. Estimated volume of storm water and/or dry weather runoff
onsite storage and reuse.

ii. Estimate of volume of potable water offset as a result of storm water
and dry weather runoff capture.

d. Environmental and Community Benefits Analysis

In addition to benefits such as water quality, water supply, and flood control,
the Plan should include a narrative analysis of how the projects and programs
within the watershed will collectively benefit the environment and community.
As applicable, the narrative analysis should describe in a quantitative manner
using the metrics in Table 3 how proposed projects and programs within the
watershed will collectively contribute to the following elements:

i. Water quality, environmental, and habitat protection, such as wetland
enhancement and/or creation, and stream/riparian enhancement and/or
in-stream flow augmentation;

ii. Increased urban green space and connectivity;

iii. Enhancement and/or creation of recreational and public use areas; and

iv. Reduced energy use reducing greenhouse gas emissions, reduced
urban heat island effects (for example, as a result from increased tree
canopy), improving air quality, and/or providing a carbon sink.

3. Information and Data Management

The Storm Water Resource Plan should include a discussion addressing data 
collection and management including, but not limited to the following: 

a. Mechanisms by which data will be managed and stored;
b. How data will be accessed by stakeholders and the public;;
c. How existing water quality and water quantity monitoring will be assessed;
d. Frequency at which data will be updated; and
e. How data gaps (for which additional monitoring is needed) will be identified.

All monitoring results conducted in the watershed should be provided (preferably in a 
GIS file) to the appropriate local, regional and/or State data collection systems 
applicable to corresponding individual-project funding and regulatory requirements.  
If the Plan includes a surface water or groundwater quality monitoring component, 
include a discussion of the integration of ambient data into the State Water Board’s 
California Environmental Data Exchange Network (CEDEN), Surface Water Ambient 



 
25 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

Monitoring Program (SWAMP), and Groundwater Ambient Monitoring and 
Assessment (GAMA) Program.  Appendix B provides a listing of web links for 
accessing information on the State Water Board’s statewide data management 
strategies. 

If the Storm Water Resource Plan consists of, or incorporates existing plans that 
include storm water monitoring and reporting, the Plan should not duplicate 
monitoring/reporting efforts.  In this case, this section of the Plan should include a 
narrative summary of the existing monitoring efforts and/or requirements of other 
incorporated plans and the associated reporting mechanism(s).  The narrative 
summary must also include detailed reference to other plans, including document 
title, general page locations of monitoring and reporting requirements, and internet 
address where document is located. 

D. IDENTIFICATION AND PRIORITIZATION OF MULTIPLE BENEFIT PROJECTS 

[A Storm Water Resource Plan] shall use measurable factors to identify, quantify, and 
prioritize potential storm water and dry weather runoff capture projects (Wat. Code, 
§ 10562, subd. (e)).  In accordance with Water Code section 10562, subd. (d), a Storm
Water Resource Plan shall identify in the Plan all of the following: 

(1) Opportunities to augment local water supply through groundwater recharge or 
storage for beneficial use of storm water and dry weather runoff. 

(2) Opportunities for source control of pollutants due to storm water and dry weather 
runoff, onsite and local infiltration, and use of storm water and dry weather runoff. 

(3) Projects to reestablish natural water drainage treatment and infiltration systems, 
or mimic natural system functions to the maximum extent feasible. 

(4) Opportunities to develop, restore,  or enhance habitat and open space through 
storm water and dry weather runoff management, including wetlands, [streams,] 
riverside habitats, parkways, and parks. 

(5) Opportunities to use existing publicly owned lands and easements, including, but 
not limited to, parks, public open space, community gardens, farm and 
agricultural preserves, school sites, and government office buildings and 
complexes, to capture, clean, store, and use storm water and dry weather runoff 
either onsite or offsite. 

(6) Design criteria and best management practices to prevent storm water and dry 
weather runoff pollution and increase effective storm water and dry weather 
runoff management for new and upgraded infrastructure and residential, 
commercial, industrial, and public development.  These design criteria and best 
management practices shall accomplish all of the following: 

(A) Reduce effective impermeability within a watershed by creating 
permeable surfaces, retention basins, cisterns, and other storage for 
beneficial use. 

(B) Increase water storage for beneficial use through a variety of onsite 
storage techniques. 



 
26 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

(C) Increase groundwater supplies through infiltration, where appropriate and 
feasible. 

(D) Support low-impact development for new and upgraded infrastructure and 
development using low-impact techniques. 

(7) Activities generating or contributing to the pollution of storm water or dry weather 
runoff, or that impair the effective beneficial use of storm water or dry weather 
runoff. 

1. Guidance for Prioritizing Storm Water and Dry Weather Runoff Capture
Projects within a Watershed

The intention of the Water Code requirements is to encourage storm water and dry
weather runoff projects that provide multiple public water quality and supply benefits,
and have been identified, prioritized, and selected based on a metrics-driven
analysis.  Therefore, the Plan should prioritize individual projects and programs for
implementation based on an integration of quantitative factors to assure the greatest
water quality, water supply, conservation, and community needs are addressed.
Accordingly, Plans should prioritize individual projects or programs according to the
following elements:

a. Projects or programs supported by entities that have created permanent,
local, or regional funding (i.e., entities who have established a new, multi-
year local or regional source of funding dedicated to storm water and/or dry
weather runoff capture projects, and who provide funds for both capital and
operations and maintenance).

b. Projects or programs that use a metric-driven approach and an
appropriately detailed geospatial analysis of multiple benefits to maximize
water supply, water quality, flood management, environmental, and other
community benefits within the watershed.

c. Projects located on lands in public ownership.

d. Projects that augment local water supplies such as:
1. Projects that use captured storm water and dry weather runoff to

recharge groundwater; and
2. Projects that store and use captured storm water and dry weather

runoff for irrigation or other permitted uses.

e. Projects and programs that preserve, restore, or enhance watershed
processes that yield a broad suite of water quality benefits and support
beneficial uses.

f. Projects and programs that create or restore habitat, open space, parks,
recreation, or green open space in disadvantaged communities with a high
deficit of tree canopy, parks and open space.

2. Multiple Benefits

The Storm Water Management Plan should include a high-level general
discussion of the overall benefits and impacts of Plan implementation.  Each
project and program implemented in accordance with the Plan should at



 
27 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

minimum, address: (1) at least two or more Main Benefits listed in Table 4 
within the watershed or sub-watershed, and (2) as many as feasible Additional 
Benefits for the same project/program. 

TABLE 4. STORM WATER MANAGEMENT BENEFITS 

Benefit Category Main Benefit Additional Benefit 

Water Quality 

Conjunctive use Nonpoint source pollution control 

Water quality protection and 
improvement 

Contribution to compliance with 
applicable permit and/or TMDL 

requirements 

Increased filtration and/or treatment 
of runoff 

Reestablished natural water 
drainage and treatment 

Water Supply 

Water supply reliability Reduced dependance on 
imported water Groundwater management 

Runoff capture and reuse 
Water conservation Augmentation or replacement of 

water supply 

Flood Management 
Decreased flood risk by reducing 

runoff rate  
and/or volume 

Reduced sanitary sewer overflows 

Environmental 

Environmental and habitat protection 
and improvement Reduced energy use, greenhouse 

gas emissions, or provides a carbon 
sink  Wetland enhancement 

and/or creation 

Stream enhancement and/or 
instream flow augmentation 

Reestablishment of the 
natural hydrograph 

Increased urban green space Water temperature improvements 

Community 

Increased urban green space 
Community involvement 

Enhance and/or create recreational 
and public use areas 

Community participation and other 
community benefits 

Conjunctive use 

Reduced energy use 

E. IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND SCHEDULE 

1. Resources for Plan Implementation

A Storm Water Resource Plan should identify the resources that the participating
entities are committing for implementation of the Plan.  The Plan should include
the following items to ensure its effective implementation (Wat. Code, Wat. Code,
§ 10562, subd. (d)(8)):

a. Projection of additional funding needs and sources for administration and
implementation needs, above and beyond the needs of the existing storm



 
28 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

water management plans and/or integrated regional water management 
plans; and 

b. Schedule for arranging and securing Plan implementation financing,
including identification of phased Plan implementation.

2. Plan Implementation

An entity developing a storm water resource plan shall identify in the plan:
[p]rojects and programs to ensure the effective implementation of the [Storm
Water Resource Plan]…to achieve multiple benefits.  These projects and
programs shall include the development of appropriate decision support tools
and the data necessary to use the decision support tools.  The Plan shall identify
…[o]rdinances or other mechanisms necessary to ensure the effective
implementation of the [Storm Water Resource Plan] (Wat. Code, § 10562, subds.
(d)(8) & (9)).

The Storm Water Resource Plan should identify the following implementation and 
scheduling components: 

a. Timeline for incorporating the Storm Water Resource Plan into an existing
Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWMP), and/or other
existing watershed water resource management plans;

b. Specific actions, projects, and studies, ongoing or planned, by which the
Plan will be implemented;

c. Agency(ies) responsible for project implementation, with clearly identified
linkages or interdependence between projects;

d. Description of the community participation strategy for Plan
implementation;

e. A procedure to track the status of each element of the Plan, such as
existing infrastructure, feasibility studies, pilot or demonstration projects,
design efforts;

f. Timelines for all active or planned project components and identification
of the institutional structure that will ensure Plan implementation;

g. A procedure for ongoing review, updates, and adaptive management of
the Plan; and

h. A strategy and timeline for obtaining necessary federal, state, and local
permits.



 
29 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

3. Implementation Performance Measures

The Storm Water Resource Plan should explain how the identified projects and
programs within the watershed will achieve the multiple-benefit goals and assure
that each implemented project is consistent with the Plan’s objectives and goals.
The Plan should include a discussion of existing and necessary data, the
technical analysis, and the performance measures corresponding to the following
elements:

a. Evaluation of the expected and actual outcomes of the Plan (i.e., water
quality, water supply augmentation, other benefits);

b. Quantification of the storm water management objectives, multiple
benefits, and environmental outcomes;

c. The monitoring and information-management systems that will be used to
gather performance data;

d. Mechanisms to adapt project operations and Plan implementation based
on performance data collected; and

e. Mechanisms to share performance data with stakeholders.

See sections VI.C.1 and VI.C.2 for guidance on quantification of implementation 
performance measures. 

F. EDUCATION, OUTREACH AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

(Note - Italicized text throughout this document is text that is directly referencing the 
California Water Code.) 

A stormwater resource plan shall…[p]rovide for community participation in plan 
development and implementation (Wat. Code, § 10562, subd. (b)(4)). 

To maximize community-based benefits, key stakeholders and the public should be 
involved in all appropriate implementation steps of the Storm Water Resource Plan.  
Public education and opportunities for public participation in actions, decisions, and 
projects implemented through watershed-based storm water management should be 
provided.  The Plan should include public education and public participation goals 
addressing the following elements: 

i. Public education and public participation opportunities to engage the public
when considering major technical and policy issues related to the
development and implementation of the Plan;

ii. Mechanisms, processes, and milestones that have been or will be used to
facilitate public participation and communication during development and
implementation of the Plan;

iii. Mechanisms to engage communities in project design and implementation;
iv. Identification of specific audiences including local ratepayers, developers,

locally regulated commercial and industrial stakeholders, nonprofit
organizations, and the general public;



 
30 

August 26, 2015 

DRAFT  Storm Water Resource Plan Guidelines 

v. Strategies to engage disadvantaged and climate vulnerable communities
within the Plan boundaries and ongoing tracking of their involvement in the
planning process;

vi. Efforts to identify and address environmental injustice within the watershed;
and

vii. A schedule for initial public engagement and education.



A- 1 

Appendix A  
 

STORM WATER RESOURCE PLAN CHECKLIST 
MANDATORY REQUIRED ELEMENTS  

PER CALIFORNIA WATER CODE 

 Water Code 
Section 

Guidelines 
Section 

PLAN DEVELOPMENT 
� Local agencies and nongovernmental organizations were 

consulted in Plan development. 
10565(a) VI.B 

� Community participation was provided for in Plan development. 10562(b)(4) VI.B 

� Plan identifies watershed and subwatershed(s) for storm water 
resource planning. 

10565(c) 
10562(b)(1) 

10565(c) 
VI.A 

IDENTIFICATION OF PROJECTS 
� Opportunities are identified to augment local water supply through 

groundwater recharge or storage for beneficial use of storm water 
and dry weather runoff. 

10562(d)(1) VI.C 

� Opportunities are identified for source control for both pollution 
and storm water and dry weather runoff volume, onsite and local 
infiltration, and use of storm water and dry weather runoff. 

10562(d)(2) VI.C 

� Projects are identified that reestablish natural water drainage 
treatment and infiltration systems, or mimic natural system 
functions to the maximum extent feasible. 

10562(d)(3) 
 

VI.C 

� Opportunities are identified to develop, restore, or enhance 
habitat and open space through storm water and dry weather 
runoff management, including wetlands, riverside habitats, 
parkways, and parks. 

10562(d)(4) 
 

VI.C 

� Opportunities are identified to use existing publicly owned lands 
and easements, including, but not limited to, parks, public open 
space, community gardens, farm and agricultural preserves, 
school sites, and government office buildings and complexes, to 
capture, clean, store, and use storm water and dry weather runoff 
either onsite or offsite. 

10562(d)(5) 
 

VI.C 

PRIORITIZATION OF PROJECTS 
� Appropriate quantitative methods are used for prioritization of 

projects. 
(This should be accomplished by using a metrics-based and 
integrated evaluation and analysis of multiple benefits to 
maximize water supply, water quality, flood management, 
environmental, and other community benefits within the 
watershed.) 

10562(b)(2) VI.D 

� The use of lands or easements in public ownership for storm 
water and dry weather runoff projects are prioritized. 

10562(b)(8) 
 

VI.D 

� For new development and redevelopments (if applicable): 
Design criteria and best management practices to prevent storm 

10562(d)(6)  VI.D 



A- 2 

water and dry weather runoff pollution and increase effective 
storm water and dry weather runoff management for new and 
upgraded infrastructure and residential, commercial, industrial, 
and public development are identified. 

PLAN IMPLEMENTATION 
� Projects and programs are identified to ensure the effective

implementation of the storm water resource plan pursuant to this 
part and achieve multiple benefits. 

10562(d)(8) VI.G 

� The development of appropriate decision support tools and the
data necessary to use the decision support tools is identitified. 

10562(d)(8) VI.G 

� Outreach and Scoping:
Community participation is provided for in Plan implementation. 

10562(b)(4) VI.G 

� Plan Incorporation:
Upon development, the Plan will be submitted to the applicable 
integrated regional water management (IRWM) group for 
incorporation into the IRWM plan. 

10562(b)(7) VI.E 

WATER QUALITY COMPLIANCE 
� Activities are identified that generate or contribute to the pollution

of storm water or dry weather runoff, or that impair the effective 
beneficial use of storm water or dry weather runoff. 

10562(d)(7) V 

� A description of how the Plan is consistent with and assist in,
compliance with total maximum daily load (TMDL) implementation 
plans and applicable NPDES permits is provided. 

10562(b)(5) V 

� A description of how the Plan is consistent with all applicable
waste discharge permits is provided. 

10562(b)(6) V 



A- 3 

STORM WATER RESOURCE PLAN CHECKLIST 
RECOMMENDATIONS PER THE 

STORM WATER RESOURCE PLAN GUIDELINES 
WATERSHED IDENTIFICATION (GUIDELINES SECTION VI.A) 
� Is developed on a watershed basis, using boundaries as delineated by USGS, CalWater, or an

applicable integrated regional water management (IRWM) group, and includes a description and 
boundary map of each watershed and sub-watershed applicable to the Plan. 

� Includes multiple projects and is not developed on a scale for the sole purpose of funding a single
project. 

� Explains why the watershed(s) are appropriate for storm water management with a multiple-benefit
watershed approach. 

� 
Describes the internal boundaries within the watershed (boundaries of municipalities; service areas 
of individual water, wastewater, and land use agencies, including those not involved in the Plan; 
groundwater basin boundaries, etc.). 

� 
Describes the water quality priorities within the watershed based on, at a minimum, applicable 
TMDLs and consideration of water body pollutant combinations listed on the State’s Clean Water 
Act (CWA) Section 303(d) list of water quality limited segments (i.e., impaired waters list). 

� Describes the general quality and identification of surface and ground water resources within the
watershed. 

� Identifies the potable water suppliers and the volume of potable water provided by water suppliers.

� Describes native habitats, creeks, lakes and rivers, parks and other natural or open space within
the sub-watershed boundaries. 

� 

Identifies the watershed processes that occur within the sub-watershed and a description of how 
those watershed processes have been disrupted within the sub-watershed (e.g., high levels of 
imperviousness convert the watershed processes of infiltration and interflow to surface runoff 
increasing runoff volumes; development commonly covers natural surfaces and often introduces 
non-native vegetation, preventing the natural supply of sediment from reaching receiving waters). 

ORGANIZATION, COORDINATION, COLLABORATION (GUIDELINES SECTION VI.B) 
� Describes the existing integrated regional water management group(s) implementing an IRWM

plan. 
� Includes identification of and coordination with all agencies and organizations (including, but not

limited to public agencies, nonprofit organizations, and  privately owned water utilities) that need to 
participate and implement their own authorities and mandates in order to address the storm water 
and dry weather runoff management objectives of the Plan for the targeted watershed. 

� Identifies nonprofit organizations working on storm water and dry weather resource planning or
management in the watershed. 

� Identifies and discusses public engagement efforts and community participation in Plan
development. 

� Identifies required decisions that must be made by local, State or federal regulatory agencies for
Plan implementation and coordinated watershed-based or regional monitoring and visualization 

� Discusses planning and coordination of existing local governmental agencies, including where
necessary new or altered governance structures to support collaboration among two or more lead 
local agencies responsible for plan implementation. 

� Describes the relationship of the Plan to other existing planning documents, ordinances, and
programs established by local agencies. 

� (If applicable) Includes a thorough explanation of why individual agency participation in various
isolated efforts is appropriate. 



A- 4 

QUANTITATIVE METHODS (GUIDELINES SECTION VI.C) 
� For all analyses: 

Uses an integrated metrics-based analysis to demonstrate that the Plan’s proposed storm water 
and dry weather capture projects and programs will satisfy the Plan’s identified water management 
objectives and multiple benefits.   

� 
 
� 
� 
 
 
� 

For water quality project analysis: 
Includes an analysis of how each project and program is related to compliance with any applicable 
NPDES permit.  The analysis should provide: 

i. Estimates of expected watershed-wide pollutant load reductions expressed as 
concentration-based or mass-based in consideration of critical conditions.  

ii. Estimates of the difference between the current and future pollutant discharge/loading in 
the receiving water/watershed once the Plan is implemented.  
 

Describes how each project or program will contribute to the preservation, restoration, or 
enhancement of watershed processes (as described in Guidelines section VI.C.2.a)  

� For storm water capture and use project analysis: 
Includes a demonstration that individual projects or a combination of projects within a sub-
watershed maximize capture of storm water and dry weather runoff from areas tributary to the 
projects using a quantitative analysis. 

� For water supply and flood management project analysis: 
Includes an analysis of how each project and program will maximize and/or augment water supply. 

� For environmental and community benefit analysis: 
Includes a narrative of how each project and program will benefit the environment and/or 
community, with some type of quantitative measurement. 

� Data management: 
Describes data collection and management, including: a) mechanisms by which data will be 
managed and stored; b) how date will be accessed by stakeholders and the public; c) how data 
collection will support statewide data needs; d) how existing water quality and water quality 
monitoring will be assessed; e) frequency at which date will be updated; and f) how data gaps will 
be identified. 

PRIORITIZATION OF PROJECTS (GUIDELINES SECTION VI.D) 
� Overall: 

Prioritizes projects using a metric-driven approach and a geospatial analysis of multiple benefits to 
maximize water supply, water quality, flood management, environmental, and community benefits 
within the watershed. 

� Management strategies: 
Includes discussion of: 1) short-term and long-term priorities for Plan implementation;  
2) process used to determine the priorities; and 3) process for modifying priorities in response to 
watershed and regional changes. 

� Multiple benefits: 
Ensures each project in accordance with the Plan contributes to at least two or more Main 
Benefits and the maximum number of Additional Benefits as listed in Guidelines Table 4. 

IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY AND SCHEDULE (GUIDELINES SECTION VI.E) 
� Identifies resources for Plan implementation, including: 1) projection of additional funding needs 

and sources for administration and implementation needs; and 2) schedule for arranging and 
securing Plan implementation financing. 

� Describes Plan implementation strategy, including: 1) timeline for incorporating Plan into existing 
plans, as applicable; 2) specific actions by which Plan will be implemented; 3) agencies responsible 
for project implementation; 4) description of community participation strategy; 5) procedures to 
track status of each project; 6) timelines for all active or planned projects; 7) procedures for 
ongoing review, updates, and adaptive management of the Plan; and 8) a strategy and timeline for 
obtaining necessary federal, state, and local permits. 

� Describes how Plan implementation performance measures will be tracked. 



A- 5 

EDUCATION, OUTREACH, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (GUIDELINES SECTION VI.F) 
� Describes public education and public participation opportunities to engage the public when

considering major technical and policy issues related to the development and implementation of the 
Plan. 

� Describes mechanisms, processes, and milestones that have been or will be used to facilitate
public participation and communication during development and implementation of the Plan. 

� Describes mechanisms to engage communities in project design and implementation.

� Identifies specific audiences including local ratepayers, developers, locally regulated commercial
and industrial stakeholders, nonprofit organizations, and the general public. 

� Describes strategies to engage disadvantaged and climate vulnerable communities within the Plan
boundaries and ongoing tracking of their involvement in the planning process. 

� Describes efforts to identify and address environmental injustice needs and issues within the
watershed. 

� Includes a schedule for initial public engagement and education.



   B - 1 

 APPENDIX B: USEFUL WEB LINKS 
 
Storm water and dry weather runoff capture and use activities must be consistent with applicable federal 
and state regulations and policies, include State Water Resource Control Board (State Water Board) plans 
and policies, and Regional Water Board water quality control plans (Basin Plans), including TMDLs 
adopted by the Regional Water Boards.  The list below includes, but is not limited to, links to the above 
referenced plans and policies. 

 
Ahwahnee Principles www.lgc.org/water-guidebook  
 
American Society of Civil www.asce.org 
Engineers (ASCE) 
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Information 

Environmental Information: 
resources.ca.gov/ceqa    

California State Clearinghouse Handbook: 
opr.ca.gov/docs/SCH_Handbook_2012.pdf  

CEQA Guidelines: 
resources.ca.gov/ceqa/docs/2014_CEQA_Statutes_and_Guidelines.pdf  

 
California Law www.leginfo.ca.gov 

California Labor Code 
www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/calawquery?codesection=lab&codebody=&hits=20 

California Water Code 
www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/calawquery?codesection=wat&codebody=&hits=20 

Public Resources Code 
www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/calawquery?codesection=prc 

 
California Office of www.oal.ca.gov 
Administrative Law 

 
California Native American www.nahc.ca.gov 
Heritage Commission 

 
California Watershed Portal cares.ucdavis.edu/resource/california-watershed-portal  

 
Department of Industrial www.dir.ca.gov 
Relations 

 
Environmental Justice www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/outreach/education/justice.shtml 

 
Environmental Justice www.ejcw.org 
Coalition for Water 

 
Environmental Justice www.epa.gov/compliance/environmentaljustice/index.html 
Program (USEPA’s) 

 
Green Infrastructure water.epa.gov/infrastructure/greeninfrastructure/index.cfm  

 
International Storm Water www.bmpdatabase.org 
BMP Database 

 
Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Plans 

www.grantsloans.water.ca.gov/grants/implementation/prop84/integregio_fundingarea.cfm 
 

Local Government Commission www.lgc.org 
Commission 

 
Low Impact Development (LID) 

USEPA 
www.epa.gov/nps/lid 

State Water Resources Control Board 
www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/low_impact_development/index.shtml 

A Review of Low Impact Development Policies: Removing Institutional Barriers to Adoption  
www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/low_impact_development/docs/ca_lid_policy_review.pdf 

http://www.lgc.org/water-guidebook
http://www.asce.org/
http://ceres.ca.gov/index.html
http://opr.ca.gov/docs/SCH_Handbook_2012.pdf
http://resources.ca.gov/ceqa/docs/2014_CEQA_Statutes_and_Guidelines.pdf
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/calawquery?codesection=lab&amp;codebody&amp;hits=20
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/calawquery?codesection=wat&amp;codebody&amp;hits=20
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/calawquery?codesection=prc
http://www.oal.ca.gov/
http://www.nahc.ca.gov/
http://cares.ucdavis.edu/resource/california-watershed-portal
http://www.dir.ca.gov/
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/outreach/education/justice.shtml
http://www.ejcw.org/
http://www.epa.gov/compliance/environmentaljustice/index.html
http://water.epa.gov/infrastructure/greeninfrastructure/index.cfm
http://www.bmpdatabase.org/
http://www.grantsloans.water.ca.gov/grants/implementation/prop84/integregio_fundingarea.cfm
http://www.lgc.org/
http://www.epa.gov/nps/lid
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/low_impact_development/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/low_impact_development/docs/ca_lid_policy_review.pdf


B - 2 

APPENDIX B: USEFUL WEB LINKS
Performance Assessment and Evaluation Plan (PAEP) Websites 

Project Planning, Research, Monitoring, and Assessment (many of these resources also apply to BMP implementation or 
habitat restoration effectiveness monitoring) 

cwam.ucdavis.edu  
www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/swamp/cwt_volunteer.shtml  
cfpub.epa.gov/watertrain/index.cfm 
www.epa.gov/region09/qa/pdfs/csbp_2003.pdf 
www.cramwetlands.org 
www.calfish.org/DesktopDefault.aspx?tabId=112 
www.cnr.berkeley.edu/forestry/comp_proj/DFG/Monitoring%20the%20Implementation%20and%20Effectiveness%20of 
%20Fisheries.pdf 

Education and Outreach 
www.michigan.gov/deq/0,1607,%207-135-3313_3682_3714-75944--,00.html 
learningstore.uwex.edu/pdf/G3658-10.PDF 

Pollutant Load Reduction Activities  
  www.sfei.org/sites/default/files/564_RMP_GuadWSmodelYr1_final_web.pdf 

Habitat Restoration 
www.dfg.ca.gov/nafwb/manual.html 
www.dfg.ca.gov/nafwb/pubs.html 
water.usgs.gov/nawqa/protocols/OFR-93-408/habit1.html 

PAEP Tools and Project Performance Measures Tables 
www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/paep/index.shtml 

Regional Water Boards Watershed Management Initiative Chapters 
Region 1:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/northcoast/water_issues/programs/watershed_management_initiative.shtml 
Region 2:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water_issues/programs/watershed/WMI/watershedmanagement.shtml 
Region 3:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralcoast/water_issues/programs/wmi/index.shtml 
Region 4:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/losangeles/water_issues/programs/regional_program/index.shtml#Watershed 
Region 5:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/watershed_management/r5_wmi_chapter.shtml 
Region 6:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/lahontan/water_issues/programs/watershed_management/index.shtml 
Region 7:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/coloradoriver/water_issues/programs/wmi/wmi_chapter.shtml 
Region 8:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/santaana/water_issues/programs/wmi/index.shtml 
Region 9:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/sandiego/water_issues/programs/wmc/index.shtml 

Regional Water Quality Control Plans (Basin Plans) 
Region 1:   www.waterboards.ca.gov/northcoast/water_issues/programs/basin_plan 
Region 2:   www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/basin_planning.shtml 
Region 3:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralcoast/publications_forms/publications/basin_plan/index.shtml 
Region 4:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/losangeles/water_issues/programs/basin_plan 
Region 5:   www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/basin_plans 
Region 6:   www.waterboards.ca.gov/lahontan/water_issues/programs/basin_plan/index.shtml 
Region 7:   www.waterboards.ca.gov/coloradoriver/water_issues/programs/basin_planning 
Region 8:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/santaana/water_issues/programs/basin_plan/index.shtml 
Region 9:  www.waterboards.ca.gov/sandiego/water_issues/programs/basin_plan/index.shtml 

State Water Board Program Information 
303d List: www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/tmdl/integrated2010.shtml 
Division of Financial Assistance:     www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans 
Groundwater Monitoring: www.waterboards.ca.gov/gama 
National Pollutant Discharge www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/npdes 
Elimination System (NPDES) 
Permit Program 
NPS Program: www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/nps/ 
Proposition 1 Grant Program: www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/proposition1.shtml 
Storm Water Regulatory Program:     www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater 
Strategic Plan: www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/hot_topics/strategic_plan/2007update.shtml 
Ocean Plan: www.swrcb.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/ocean/ 
Areas of Special Biological 
Significance (ASBS):  www.swrcb.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/ocean/asbs.shtml 

http://cwam.ucdavis.edu/
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/swamp/cwt_volunteer.shtml
http://cfpub.epa.gov/watertrain/index.cfm
http://www.epa.gov/region09/qa/pdfs/csbp_2003.pdf
http://www.cramwetlands.org/
http://www.calfish.org/DesktopDefault.aspx?tabId=112
http://www.calfish.org/DesktopDefault.aspx?tabId=112
http://www.cnr.berkeley.edu/forestry/comp_proj/DFG/Monitoring%20the%20Implementation%20and%20Effectiveness%20of%20Fisheries.pdf
http://www.cnr.berkeley.edu/forestry/comp_proj/DFG/Monitoring%20the%20Implementation%20and%20Effectiveness%20of%20Fisheries.pdf
http://www.michigan.gov/deq/0%2C1607%2C%207-135-3313_3682_3714-75944--%2C00.html
http://www.michigan.gov/deq/0%2C1607%2C%207-135-3313_3682_3714-75944--%2C00.html
http://learningstore.uwex.edu/pdf/G3658-10.PDF
http://www.sfei.org/sites/default/files/564_RMP_GuadWSmodelYr1_final_web.pdf
http://www.dfg.ca.gov/nafwb/manual.html
http://www.dfg.ca.gov/nafwb/pubs.html
http://water.usgs.gov/nawqa/protocols/OFR-93-408/habit1.html
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/paep/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/northcoast/water_issues/programs/watershed_management_initiative.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water_issues/programs/watershed/WMI/watershedmanagement.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralcoast/water_issues/programs/wmi/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/losangeles/water_issues/programs/regional_program/index.shtml#Watershed
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/watershed_management/r5_wmi_chapter.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/watershed_management/r5_wmi_chapter.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/lahontan/water_issues/programs/watershed_management/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/lahontan/water_issues/programs/watershed_management/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/coloradoriver/water_issues/programs/wmi/wmi_chapter.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/santaana/water_issues/programs/wmi/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sandiego/water_issues/programs/wmc/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/northcoast/water_issues/programs/basin_plan
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/basin_planning.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralcoast/publications_forms/publications/basin_plan/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/losangeles/water_issues/programs/basin_plan/
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/basin_plans/
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/lahontan/water_issues/programs/basin_plan/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/coloradoriver/water_issues/programs/basin_planning
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/coloradoriver/water_issues/programs/basin_planning
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/santaana/water_issues/programs/basin_plan/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/santaana/water_issues/programs/basin_plan/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/sandiego/water_issues/programs/basin_plan/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/tmdl/integrated2010.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/gama
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/npdes
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/nps/
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/grants_loans/proposition1.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/hot_topics/strategic_plan/2007update.shtml
http://www.swrcb.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/ocean/


B - 3 

APPENDIX B: USEFUL WEB LINKS
State Water Board Statewide Data Management Programs 

California Integrated Water Quality System (CIWQS) 
www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/ciwqs/index.shtml 

Surface Water Ambient Monitoring Program (SWAMP): 
www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/swamp 

SWAMP Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP): 
  www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/quality_assurance/index.shtml 

US Census 2000 www.census.gov/main/www/cen2000.html 

USEPA’s NPS Program water.epa.gov/polwaste/nps/  

USEPA’s Storm Water www.epa.gov/npdes/stormwater 
Program 

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/ciwqs/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/swamp/
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/quality_assurance/index.shtml
http://www.census.gov/main/www/cen2000.html
http://water.epa.gov/polwaste/nps/
http://www.epa.gov/npdes/stormwater


AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 

16401 Paramount Blvd., Paramount, CA 90723 • 562.663.6850 phone 562-634-8216 fax

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 
• www.gatewayirwmp.org

Christopher Cash, Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa, Vice-Chair • Charlie Honeycutt, Secretary/Treasurer •   Kevin Wattier, Chair Emeritus 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · Huntington Park · 
La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·  

South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 

October 8, 2015 

Section 9 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING GOVERNING BOARD BYLAWS 

SUMMARY 

Over the past several years, GWMA’s membership has grown significantly.  The Joint Powers 
Authority (“JPA”) agreement outlines certain requirements for appointing board members.  Due to 
the overwhelming administrative management of up to 58 board members and alternates, staff 
and legal counsel reviewed governing board issues as a whole in relation to the JPA and current 
laws and have jointly developed a program for moving forward in a more manageable and 
efficient manner. 

BACKGROUND 

The JPA specifies 2-year terms for board members and alternates.  Traditionally, these 2 year 
terms began with the membership commencement date or vacancy dates.  This ultimately led to a 
continuous board appointment process with various interpretations of how the appointments were 
made.  To better manage the process and clarify some ambiguities in the Joint Powers 
Agreement, legal counsel and the Executive Officer jointly prepared the attached draft of Bylaws 
addressing appointment of Board members.  

The attached Bylaws provide the following: 

1. All terms of office expiring after September 1, 2015, will be extended to September 30,
2017.  Any agency that does not desire to have the term of its Board member or alternate
member extended may remove the member or members and appoint a new member or
alternate member.

2. Future terms will commence on October 1 of odd-numbered years and expire on
September 2 years later.

3. Vacancies will be filled by appointment for the remainder of the unexpired term.
4. As provided in the Agreement, appointments of persons other than members of the

legislative body must be made by adoption of a resolution.
5. The Bylaws provide that only individuals, and not positions or titles, can be appointed to

the Board.



AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 

16401 Paramount Blvd., Paramount, CA 90723 • 562.663.6850 phone 562-634-8216 fax

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 
• www.gatewayirwmp.org

Christopher Cash, Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa, Vice-Chair • Charlie Honeycutt, Secretary/Treasurer •   Kevin Wattier, Chair Emeritus 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · Huntington Park · 
La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·  

South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 

6. The Bylaws make it clear that alternate Board members as well as Board members can
appoint proxies and that each Board member or alternate can appoint only two proxies per
year.  The latter provision ensures that a member entity cannot effectively change its
representative by having continual proxy representatives.

In response to concerns raised by some Board members about appointing independent 
contractors to the Board, legal counsel advised staff that the Agreement does not prohibit such 
appointments, but that such a practice raises serious conflict of interest concerns.  The most 
significant conflict of interest issue is that any contract GWMA approves with a Board Member or 
his or her firm or in connection with which a Board Member or his or her firm will be a 
subcontractor might be void under Government Code Section 1090 even if the Board member 
abstains from the decision on the contract.  In addition, participation in any such decision by the 
affected Board Member would likely constitute a violation of the Political Reform Act and 
Government Code Section 1090. 

The draft Bylaws provide the following two alternative approaches to address these concerns: 

1. Independent contractors can be appointed to the Board under the following conditions:

a. The Board Member cannot participate in discussions about or vote on the
annual budget. 

b. The Board Member cannot participate in discussions on or vote on contracts
with vendors or consultants and/or contractors. 

c. The Board cannot approve a contract with the independent contractor Board
Member or his or her firm or in connection with which the independent contractor Board 
Member or his or her firm will be a subcontractor. 

d. If application of Subsections a and b of Section 7 would result in an
insufficient number of Board Members to take action on a matter, sufficient independent 
contractor Board Members necessary to take action may participate in the decision.  The 
independent contractor Board Members who may participate shall be determined by lot. 

OR 

2. No independent contractor may be appointed to the Board.



AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 

16401 Paramount Blvd., Paramount, CA 90723 • 562.663.6850 phone 562-634-8216 fax

Los Angeles Gateway Region 
Integrated Regional Water Management 

Joint Powers Authority 
• www.gatewayirwmp.org

Christopher Cash, Board Chair • Adriana Figueroa, Vice-Chair • Charlie Honeycutt, Secretary/Treasurer •   Kevin Wattier, Chair Emeritus 
Proudly serving Gateway cities and agencies in Southeastern Los Angeles County 

Members: Artesia · Avalon · Bell · Bell Gardens · Bellflower ·Central Basin Municipal Water District · Cerritos · Commerce · Cudahy · Downey · Hawaiian Gardens · Huntington Park · 
La Mirada · Maywood · Lakewood · Long Beach · Long Beach Water Department · Lynwood · Montebello · Norwalk · Paramount · Pico Rivera · Santa Fe Springs · Signal Hill ·  

South Gate · Vernon · Water Replenishment District of Southern California · Whittier 

With Technical Support From The Sanitation Districts Of Los Angeles County 

FISCAL IMPACT 

No impact. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the GWMA Bylaws dated September 10, 2015, after deciding which alternative, if any, to 
accept concerning independent contractors. 



BYLAWS 

OF 

THE LOS ANGELES GATEWAY REGION 

INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT 

JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

EFFECTIVE SEPTEMBER 10, 2015 

ARTICLE 1. AUTHORITY 

Section 1. Authority.  These bylaws are adopted pursuant to the authority of 
Section 6(e)(8) of the Joint Powers Agreement (“Agreement”) of the Los Angeles Gateway 
Region Integrated Regional Water Management Joint Powers Authority (“Authority”). 

ARTICLE 2. MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

Section 1. Board Member Term of Office.  The term of office for Board Members and 
Alternate Board Members (collectively “Board Member” or “Board Members”) of the 
Governing Board (“Board”) shall commence on October 1st of each odd-numbered year and 
terminate on September 30th two years later.  The terms of all Board Members of the Governing 
Board shall run consecutively and shall not be staggered. 

Section 2. Current Terms of Office.  The terms of office of Board Members whose terms 
have not expired on the date these Bylaws are adopted shall continue to hold office until 
September 30, 2017.  

Section 3. Appointment to Fill Vacancy.  Board Members appointed to fill a vacancy on 
the Board shall hold office for the remainder of the unexpired term. 

Section 4. Manner of Appointment.  A Member agency may appoint a member of its 
legislative body to the Board by minute action.  Alternatively, a Member agency may appoint 
persons other than a member of the Member agency’s legislative body to the Board only by 
adoption of a resolution. 

Section 5. Only Individuals can be Appointed to the Board.  Member agencies must 
appoint Board Members by name and not by position or title. 

Section 6. Proxy Board Members 

a. “Member” as used in Section 6(a) of the Agreement shall be interpreted to
include an Alternate Board Member.

-1- 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9



b. Each Board Member may appoint a proxy only a maximum of two (2)
times annually and no person may serve as a proxy more than two (2)
times each calendar year.

(Option 1) 

Section 7. Independent Contractors Serving as Board Members.  A Member agency may 
appoint an independent contractor to serve as a Board Member subject to the following 
conditions: 

a. The Board Member cannot participate in discussions about or vote on the
annual budget.

b. The Board Member cannot participate in discussions on or vote on
contracts with vendors or consultants and/or contractors.

c. The Board cannot approve a contract with the independent contractor
Board Member or his or her firm or a contract in connection with which
the independent contractor Board Member or his or her firm will be a  sub-
contractor.

d. If application of Subsections a and b of Section 7 would result in an
insufficient number of Board Members to take action on a matter,
sufficient independent contractor Board Members necessary to take action
may participate in the decision.  The independent contractor Board
Members who may participate shall be determined by lot.

(Option 2) 

Section 7. Qualifications to Serve on the Board.  A Member agency may appoint only an 
elected official or common law employee and not an independent contractor to serve on the 
Board. 

-2- 
12664-0001\1877223v4.doc 


	AGENDA - October 8 2015 - final
	Section 5a - Minutes of September 10 2015 - final
	Thursday, SEPTEMBER 10, 2015
	None.
	ITEM 5 – CONSENT CALENDAR
	Director Rapp moved to approve the consent calendar.  The motion was seconded by Director Rigg and was approved by the following voice vote:
	AYES: MONROE, HIERLIHY, STOWELL, RAPP, STRACKER, BATSON, HONEYCUTT, LEE, INIGUEZ, O’GRADY, DIXON, WIESKE, LEUNG, DERAS, RIGG, ROJAS, MORALES
	NOES: NONE
	ABSTAIN: DOR
	ITEM 6 – PRESENTATION: GCCOG STRATEGIC TRANSPORTATION PLAN (GCCOG STP) CHAPTER 13 STORMWATER
	Ms. Yvette Kirrin and Mr. Daniel Apt, Gateway Cities Council of Governments, gave a presentation on the GCCOG Strategic Transportation Plan Chapter 13 Stormwater.  They indicated that the purpose of the plan was to ensure that stormwater treatment me...
	They then proceeded to provide the Board with the background information, outlined permits and other requirements, discussed the stormwater quality strategy for transportation projects, reviewed intersection analysis and cost evaluations, funding fra...
	ITEM 7 – PRESENTATION:  GATEWAY CITIES AND RIVERS URBAN GREENING MASTER PLAN
	ITEM 8 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING GWMA ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
	AYES: MONROE, HIERLIHY, STOWELL, RAPP, STRACKER, BATSON, HONEYCUTT, LEE, INIGUEZ, O’GRADY, DIXON, WIESKE, LEUNG, DERAS, RIGG, ROJAS, MORALES, DOR, DE WITT
	NOES: NONE
	ABSTAIN: NONE
	ITEM 9 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING GWMA GRANT POLICY
	AYES: MONROE, HIERLIHY, STOWELL, RAPP, STRACKER, BATSON, HONEYCUTT, LEE, INIGUEZ, O’GRADY, DIXON, WIESKE, LEUNG, DERAS, RIGG, ROJAS, MORALES, DOR, DE WITT
	NOES: NONE
	ABSTAIN: NONE
	ITEM 10 – DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING GWMA BYLAWS REGARDING GOVERNING BOARD APPOINTMENTS
	ITEM 11 – GATEWAY REGION WATERSHED MANAGEMENT PLAN (WMPs) AND MOU AND/OR AMENDMENTS ACTIVITIES
	Lower Los Angeles River Upper Reach 2 Watershed Group
	This item was deferred until the October Board Meeting.
	Lower Los Angeles River Watershed Group
	This item was deferred until the October Board Meeting.
	Los Cerritos Channel Watershed Group
	This item was deferred until the October Board Meeting.
	Lower San Gabriel River Watershed Group
	This item was deferred until the October Board Meeting.
	ITEM 12 – EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
	Ms. Kast acknowledged Mr. Jim Glancy, who announced his retirement from the city of Lakewood.
	ITEM 13 – DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS/REPORT
	Director Rapp reported their project with Cal Trans is moving ahead. It was announced Jason Wynn will be the new board alternate for the city of Lakewood.
	The meeting was adjourned at 1:10 p.m.


	Section 5b - Board Letter Warrant List - final
	Section 5b - Warrant List - final
	Sheet1

	Section 7 - Board Letter for Fair Allication of Prop 1 - final
	Section 7 - letter of support for RMC Prop 1 - final
	Section 8 - Board Letter for SWRCB public comment letter - final
	Section 8a - Draft Letter for Public Comment on SWRCB Guidelines - final
	Section 8a1- notice Prop Stormwater Guidelines final
	Section 8a2 - SWRCB Presentations - final
	Section 8a3 - Prop 1 Stormwater Plan Guidelines  070915_1990590_sw_resources_plan_guidelines - final
	Foreword
	Acronyms and Key Words
	Definitions
	Section I: Purpose
	Section II: Introduction and Background
	Section III: Applicability of Guidelines per Water Code section 10563
	Section IV:  Water Code Requirements for Storm Water Resource Plans
	Section V: Standard Provisions
	Section VI: Storm Water Resource Plan Guidance

	Section 9 - Board Letter Bylaws - final
	Section 9 - GWMA Bylaws - final
	ARTICLE 1. AUTHORITY
	Section 1. Authority.  These bylaws are adopted pursuant to the authority of Section 6(e)(8) of the Joint Powers Agreement (“Agreement”) of the Los Angeles Gateway Region Integrated Regional Water Management Joint Powers Authority (“Authority”).

	ARTICLE 2. MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS
	Section 1. Board Member Term of Office.  The term of office for Board Members and Alternate Board Members (collectively “Board Member” or “Board Members”) of the Governing Board (“Board”) shall commence on October 1st of each odd-numbered year and ter...
	Section 2. Current Terms of Office.  The terms of office of Board Members whose terms have not expired on the date these Bylaws are adopted shall continue to hold office until September 30, 2017.
	Section 3. Appointment to Fill Vacancy.  Board Members appointed to fill a vacancy on the Board shall hold office for the remainder of the unexpired term.
	Section 4. Manner of Appointment.  A Member agency may appoint a member of its legislative body to the Board by minute action.  Alternatively, a Member agency may appoint persons other than a member of the Member agency’s legislative body to the Board...
	Section 5. Only Individuals can be Appointed to the Board.  Member agencies must appoint Board Members by name and not by position or title.
	Section 6. Proxy Board Members
	a. “Member” as used in Section 6(a) of the Agreement shall be interpreted to include an Alternate Board Member.
	b. Each Board Member may appoint a proxy only a maximum of two (2) times annually and no person may serve as a proxy more than two (2) times each calendar year.

	Section 7. Independent Contractors Serving as Board Members.  A Member agency may appoint an independent contractor to serve as a Board Member subject to the following conditions:
	a. The Board Member cannot participate in discussions about or vote on the annual budget.
	b. The Board Member cannot participate in discussions on or vote on contracts with vendors or consultants and/or contractors.
	c. The Board cannot approve a contract with the independent contractor Board Member or his or her firm or a contract in connection with which the independent contractor Board Member or his or her firm will be a  sub-contractor.
	d. If application of Subsections a and b of Section 7 would result in an insufficient number of Board Members to take action on a matter, sufficient independent contractor Board Members necessary to take action may participate in the decision.  The in...

	Section 7. Qualifications to Serve on the Board.  A Member agency may appoint only an elected official or common law employee and not an independent contractor to serve on the Board.



